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To,
The Members of A. K. Capital Services Limited (“the Company”)

DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Directors of your Company are pleased to present the 31" Annual Report of the Company, together with the Annual Audited Standalone
and Consolidated financial statements for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024.

1. FINANCIALHIGHLIGHTS

Asummary of the financial performance of the Company, both on Standalone and Consolidated basis, for the Financial Year 2023-24 as
compared to the previous Financial Year is given below:

Standalone Financial Statements:
(INR in Lakhs except earnings per share)

Particulars FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23
Total revenue 12,719.95 11,534.52
Total expenses 8,687.79 7,628.26
Profit before tax 4,032.16 3,906.26
Tax expenses:
Current tax 775.00 920.00
Prior period tax adjustments (2.99) (2.78)
Deferred tax expense/(credit) 80.26 (82.37)
Profit after tax (A) 3,179.89 3,071.41
Other comprehensive Income, net of tax

Item that will not to be reclassified to the statement of profit and loss (37.20) (10.83)

Less: Income tax expense on above 9.36 2.72

Other comprehensive Income for the year (B) (27.84) (8.11)
Total comprehensive Income for the year [A+B] 3,152.05 3,063.30
Earnings per equity share (face value INR 10/- per share)
Basic and Diluted (INR) 48.18 46.54

Opening balance of other comprehensive income (622.80) (614.69)

Add: Other comprehensive income for the year (27.84) (8.11)

Closing balance of other comprehensive income (650.64) (622.80)

Opening balance of retained earnings brought forward from previous year 37,462.65 34,985.24
Add: Profit for the year 3,179.89 3,071.41
Profit available for appropriation 40,642.54 38,056.65
Less: Appropriations

Dividend paid** (924.00) (594.00)
Closing balance of retained earnings 39,718.54 37,462.65

Note: Previous periods figures have been regrouped / rearranged wherever necessary.

**During the financial year 2023-24, the Board of Directors of the Company had paid a final dividend of INR 6/- per equity share (pertaining
to Financial Year ended March 31, 2023) having face value of INR 10/- each. The same is approved by the shareholders of the Company in
the Annual General Meeting held on September 16, 2023. The total cash outflow of INR 396.00 Lakhs.

During the financial year 2023-24, the Board of Directors of the Company had paid interim dividend of INR 8/- per equity share having face
value of INR 10/- each for the year ended March 31, 2024, at its board meeting held on February 9, 2024. The total cash outflow of
INR 528.00 Lakhs.
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(INR in Lakhs except earnings per share)

Particulars

FY 2023-24

FY 2022-23

Total revenue

51,905.09

40,680.69

Total expenses

39,628.34

28,886.71

Profit before tax

12,276.75

11,793.98

Tax expenses

Current tax

2,819.87

3,048.30

Prior period tax adjustments

(8.34)

(9.23)

Deferred tax expense/(credit)

213.03

(86.67)

Profit after tax (A)

9,252.19

8,841.58

Other comprehensive income, net of tax

Item that will not to be reclassified to the statement of profit and loss

(56.86)

(30.43)

Less: Income tax expense on above

24.85

12.35

Other comprehensive Income for the year (B)

(32.01)

(18.08)

Total comprehensive income for the year [A+B]

9,220.18

8,823.50

Profit for the year attributable to:

9,252.19

8,841.58

Owners of the Company

9,170.70

8,763.40

Non-controlling interest

81.49

78.18

Other comprehensive income attributable to:

(32.01)

(18.08)

Owners of the Company

(31.54)

(17.73)

Non-controlling interest

(0.47)

(0.35)

Earnings per equity share (face value INR 10/- per share)
Basic and Diluted (INR)

138.95

132.78

Opening balance of Other comprehensive income

(2,408.09)

(2,390.36)

Add: Other comprehensive income for the year

(31.54)

(17.73)

Closing balance of other comprehensive income

(2,439.63)

(2,408.09)

Opening balance of retained earnings brought forward from previous year:

68,335.05

61,580.06

Add: Profit for the year

9,170.70

8,763.40

Profit available for appropriation

77,505.75

70,343.46

Less: Appropriations

Dividend paid

(924.00)

(594.00)

Dividend on CCPS

(230.09)

(230.09)

Transfer to special reserve

(1,284.00)

(1,184.32)

Closing balance of retained earnings

75,067.66

68,335.05

Note: Previous periods figures have been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary.

2. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE AND STATE OF AFFAIRS OF THE COMPANY

A. K. Capital Services Limited is a Flagship Company of the A. K. Group, and is registered with SEBI as a Category | Merchant Banker
and Investment Adviser.

During the Financial Year 2024-25, the Company has made an application to SEBI to surrender its Investor Adviser license. In view of
the same, SEBI and BSE Administration & Supervision Ltd. (BASL) have approved the application for Surrender of Certificate of
Registration as Investment Adviser vide email dated July 22, 2024.

On a standalone basis, your Company earned total revenue of INR 12,719.95 Lakhs during the Financial Year under review as against
INR 11,534.52 Lakhs reported in the previous Financial Year. The profit before tax is INR 4,032.16 Lakhs for the current Financial Year
as against INR 3,906.26 Lakhs during the previous Financial Year. After making provision for tax, the net profit of your Company is
INR 3,179.89 Lakhs for the current Financial Year as against the net profit of INR 3,071.41 Lakhs in the previous Financial Year.

The consolidated total revenue of your Company stood at INR 51,905.09 Lakhs for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024, as against
INR 40,680.68 Lakhs for the previous Financial Year. The consolidated profit before tax is INR 12,276.75 Lakhs for the current Financial
Year as against INR 11,793.98 Lakhs in the previous Financial Year. After making provision for tax, the consolidated net profit of your
Company is INR 9,252.19 Lakhs for the current Financial Year as against INR 8,841.58 Lakhs in the previous Financial Year.
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3. PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL POSITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

As required under Rule 5 and Rule 8(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, a report on the highlights of performance of
subsidiaries, and their contribution to the overall performance of the Company in Form AOC-1 is given at Note No. 47(b) to the
Consolidated Financial Statements forming part of the Annual Report.

In accordance with provisions of Section 136 of Companies Act, 2013, the separate audited financial statements of each subsidiary
company is also available on the website of your Company at https://www.akgroup.co.in/.

. NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Standalone financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) notified under Section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with The Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Ind AS under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis
except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values and based on the accounting principle of a going concern in
accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (“GAAP”). Accounting policies have been consistently applied except
where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the
accounting policy hitherto in use. The Financial Statements are presented in Lakhs or decimal thereof.

The financial statements have been presented in accordance with Schedule Ill-Division Ill General Instructions for Preparation of
financial statements of a Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC) that is required to comply with Ind AS.

. DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors has declared an Interim Dividend of 80% i.e. INR 8/- per equity share on each fully paid up 66,00,000 equity
shares of INR 10/- each of the Company amounting to INR 528 Lakhs for the Financial Year ending March 31, 2024. The dividend was
paid to those members of the Company whose names appeared on the Register of Members of the Company as on February 22, 2024.

The Board has recommended a Final Dividend of 80% i.e. INR 8/- per equity share of INR 10/- each for Financial Year 2023-24.

The payment of the final dividend is subject to the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and shall be paid to
those members whose names appear in the Register of Members as on Friday, August 23, 2024. The Register of Members and Share
Transfer Books will remain closed from Saturday, August 24 2024 to Saturday, August 31, 2024 (both days inclusive). The amount of
final dividend on Equity Shares thereon aggregates to INR 528 Lakhs.

The total dividend (interim and final) declared/ recommended by the Board for Financial Year 2023-24, is INR 16/- per equity shares of
INR 10/- each fully paid up.

. TRANSFER TO GENERAL RESERVES
During the year under review, the Company has not transferred any amount to the General Reserves.

. PUBLICDEPOSITS

No disclosure is required in respect of the details relating to the deposits covered under Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013, as the
Company has not accepted any deposit during the year under review.

. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS BY THE COMPANY

Particulars of Loans, Investments and Guarantees as required under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are
givenin “Note No. 5, 6 & 33 of the Notes to the standalone financial statements”.

. SHARE CAPITAL AND ISSUE OF EQUITY SHARES WITH DIFFERENTIAL VOTING RIGHTS

During the year under review the Company has not issued shares with differential voting rights nor granted stock options nor sweat
equity.

.DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the requirements under Section 134(3) (c ) and 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, with respect to Directors’ Responsibility
Statement, your Directors confirm that they have:

a) Followedthe applicable accounting standards in preparation of the annual financial statements for the Financial Year 2023-24;

Have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024 and of the profit of the Company
for the Financial Year 2023-24 ended on that date;

Taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities, if
any;

Prepared the annual accounts on a ‘going concern basis’;

Laid down proper internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal financial controls are adequate
and are operating effectively; and

Devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that the systems are adequate and are
operating effectively.
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11. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

Your Company has put in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements. Internal Financial
Control has been assessed during the year taking into consideration the essential components of internal controls stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (ICAI).

M/s. JMR & Associates, Practicing Chartered Accountants Firm have assessed the Internal Financial controls on the basis of internal
processes having an effect on the financial statements of the Company.

In addition, on assessing the controls of its operating processes, the Company level controls have also been assessed with respect to
the existing policy and procedures of the Company. Based on the results of such assessments carried out by the management with the
assistance of M/s. JMR & Associates, Practicing Chartered Accountants Firm, no reportable material weakness or significant deficiency
in the design or operation of internal financial controls was observed.

Also, the statutory auditors of the Company, viz. M/s. PYS & Co., LLP, Chartered Accountants have also verified the Internal Financial
Controls systems over financial reporting and have opined that such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Control Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report provides a report on the Internal Financial Controls over the financial reporting of
A. K. Capital Services Limited as of March 31, 2024.

During the Financial Year under review, no material or serious observations have been highlighted for inefficiency or inadequacy of such
controls.

. RISKMANAGEMENT

As a diversified enterprise, your Company continues to focus on a system-based approach to business risk management. The
management of risk is embedded in the corporate strategies that best match organizational capability with market opportunities,
focusing on building distributed leadership and succession planning processes, nurturing specialism and enhancing organizational
capabilities. Accordingly, management of risk has always been an integral part of the Company’s Strategy. In the opinion of the Board,
there are no elements of risks threatening the existence of the Company.

13.INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY
The Company has adequate internal control systems to commensurate with the nature of business and size of operations for ensuring:
i orderly and efficient conduct of business, including adherence to Company’s policies and procedures;
i.  safeguarding of all our assets against loss from unauthorized use or disposal;
iii.  prevention and detection of frauds and errors;
iv.  accuracy and completeness of accounting records;
v.  timely preparation of reliable financial information; and
vi. compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

The policies, guidelines and procedures are in place to ensure that all transactions are authorised, recorded and reported correctly as
well as provides for adequate checks and balances.

Adherence to these processes is ensured through frequent internal audits. The internal control system is supplemented by an extensive
program of internal audit and reviews by the senior management. To ensure independence, the internal audit function has a reporting
line to the Audit Committee of the Board.

The Audit Committee of the Board reviews the performance of the audit and the adequacy of internal control systems and compliance
with regulatory guidelines. The Audit Committee of Board provides necessary oversight and directions to the internal audit function and
periodically reviews the findings and ensures corrective measures are taken. This system enables us to achieve efficiency and
effectiveness of operations, reliability and completeness of financial and management information and compliance with applicable laws
and regulations.

14. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

All contracts/ arrangements/ transactions entered into by the Company during the Financial Year 2023-24 with related parties were in
compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

The Company had obtained prior approval of the Audit Committee for all the related party transactions during the Financial Year
2023-24, as envisaged in Regulation 23(2) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. Further,
the Audit Committee had given prior omnibus approval under Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6(A) of The
Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 read with Regulation 23(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, for related party transactions that are foreseen and of repetitive nature during the period under
review and the required disclosures are made to the Audit Committee and Board on quarterly basis.

The Company also secures omnibus approval from the Audit Committee for transaction up to INR 1 Crore with related party where the
need for Related Party Transaction cannot be foreseen and adequate details are not available.

Allrelated party transactions that were entered during the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024 were on an arm’s length basis and were
in the ordinary course of business. Therefore, the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 were not attracted.

Further pursuant to Regulation 23(4) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company
has also obtained the prior approval of the shareholders for the material related party transactions entered into by the Company and its
subsidiaries on one hand with A. K. Capital Finance Limited and A. K. Services Private Limited respectively.
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The details of material related party transaction entered into by the Company during the Financial Year 2023-24 are enumerated in
Form AOC-2 as annexed in Annexure - 4 under Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 8(2) of The Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. In addition to above, the disclosure of transactions with related party for the year, as per Indian Accounting
Standard-24 (IND AS-24), Related Party Disclosures is given in Note No. 31 of the Notes to the Financial Statements section of the
Annual Report.

The Company has in place, a Board approved Policy on Materiality and Dealing with Related Party Transactions, which is available on
the website of the Company at:

https://www.akgroup.co.in/docs/Policy%200n%20materiality%20and%20dealing%20with%20Related%20Party%20Transactions.pdf

15. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

There was no material change and commitment affecting the financial position of your Company between the end of the Financial Year
2023-24 and the date of this report, which could have an impact on your Company’s operation in the future or its status as a “Going
Concern”.

16. CREDIT RATING

The details regarding Credit Rating assigned, reaffirmed, reviewed etc. with respect to the various facilities availed by the Company
during the financial year are given in the ‘Report on Corporate Governance’ which is as follows:

Rating Agency Instruments Rating Action Rating Action

CARE Ratings Limited CARE A1+ (A One Plus) Commercial Paper Reaffirmed April 6, 2023

CARE Ratings Limited CARE A1+ (A One Plus) Commercial Paper Reaffirmed May 9, 2023

CARE Ratings Limited CARE A1+ (A One Plus) Commercial Paper Reaffirmed July 5, 2023

CARE Ratings Limited CARE A1+ (A One Plus) Commercial Paper Reaffirmed October 13, 2023

Acuité Ratings & ACUITE AA- (ACUITE Long Term Assigned/Reaffirmed October 27, 2023
Research Limited Double A Minus) Instruments
(Outlook: Stable)

17. STATUTORY AUDITORS AND SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

M/s. PYS & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration Number - 012388S/S200048), were re-appointed in the 29th Annual
General Meeting of the Company held on September 17, 2022 as Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office for a term of Five
years until the conclusion of the 34th Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2027.

Further, the Board of Directors at their Meeting held on May 24, 2024, has re-appointed M/s. Ragini Chokshi & Co., Practicing Company
Secretaries, as Secretarial Auditor, to conduct the Secretarial Audit of the Company for Financial Year ended on March 31, 2025.

18. AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Statutory Auditors’ Report forms part of the Annual Report. There were no qualifications, reservations, adverse remarks or
disclaimers in the Report of the Statutory Auditors of the Company.

19. REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors of the Company have not reported any fraud to the Audit Committee or to the Board
of Directors under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

20. MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS

The Company is not required to maintain Cost Records as specified by the Central Government under Section 148(1) of the Companies
Act, 2013.
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21. SUBSIDIARIES AND MATERIAL SUBSIDIARIES
A. SUBSIDIARIES
As on March 31,2024, your Company has following subsidiaries:
Sr. No. Name of the subsidiaries

i. A. K. Capital Finance Limited
ii. A. K. Stockmart Private Limited
iii. A. K. Wealth Management Private Limited
iv. A. K. Capital Corporation Private Limited
V. A. K. Capital (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.
Vi. Family Home Finance Private Limited (Step-down subsidiary)
A. K. Alternative Asset Managers Private Limited (Step-down subsidiary)

B. MATERIAL SUBSIDIARIES

Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 16(1)(c ) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations,
2015, including amendments thereto, the Company has two material subsidiaries namely, A. K. Capital Finance Limited and
A. K. Stockmart Private Limited during the Financial Year 2023-24.

The Policy for determining the material subsidiaries has been formulated and adopted by the Board. The Policy may be accessed on
the website at link:

https://www.akgroup.co.in/docs/Policy%20for%20Determining%20Material%20Subsidiaries.pdf

22, SECRETARIAL AUDIT OF MATERIAL UNLISTED SUBSIDIARIES

All the material subsidiaries of the Company had undertaken Secretarial Audit for Financial Year 2023-24 pursuant to Section 204 of the
Act and the said report forms part of such subsidiaries’ respective annual reports. The Secretarial Audit Report of unlisted Material
Subsidiary Company, viz. A. K. Stockmart Private Limited is attached as Annexure — 3 to this report pursuant to Regulation 24A of the
Listing Regulations.

23.BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OF THE COMPANY:
I. APPOINTMENTS SINCE LASTANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
Based on recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company, the Board had appointed
Mr. Vinod Kumar Kathuria (DIN: 06662559) as an Additional Director (Non-Executive, Independent) of the Company with effect from
December 18, 2023 for a period of 3 years.

The shareholders vide postal ballot concluded on February 15, 2024 approved the appointment of Mr. Vinod Kumar Kathuria
effective from December 18, 2023, for a term of 3 consecutive years till December 17, 2026.

In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Vinod Kumar Kathuria possesses requisite integrity, expertise, experience and proficiency.

Il. COMPOSITION OF THEBOARD
As on March 31, 2024, the Board of Directors of your Company comprised of Eight Directors* of which Three are Executive
Directors, One Woman Non-Executive Non-Independent Director and Four are Non-Executive Independent Directors.The
Chairman of the Board is Non-Executive Independent Director.
The composition of the Board is in consonance with the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,
and in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended from time to time.
During the Financial Year under review, Mr. Khimji Shamji Pandav (DIN: 01070944) resigned from the Board of the Company w.e.f.
December 18, 2023 due to his professional and personal commitments and Mr. Vinod Kumar Kathuria (DIN: 06662559) was

appointed as Additional Independent Director w.e.f December 18, 2023 and was regularized as Non-Executive Independent
Director w.e.f February 16, 2023.

The details of the board composition are provided in ‘Report on Corporate Governance’ forming part of the Annual Report.

*Note: Mr. Subhash Chandra Bhargava retired from the position of Chairman and ceased to be Independent Director of the
Company due to completion of his second term of office as an Independent Director w.e.f. March 31, 2024 as per the provisions of
Section 149(11) of the Companies Act, 2013.

. RETIREMENT SINCELASTAGM

Mr. Subhash Chandra Bhargava retired from the position of Chairman and ceased to be Independent Director of the Company due
to completion of his second term of office as an Independent Director w.e.f. March 31, 2024 as per the provisions of Section 149(11)
of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Board placed on record their appreciation for Mr. Subhash Chandra Bhargava’s contribution, guidance and strategic vision that
has helped the Company build and execute a resilient growth strategy.

. RETIREMENT BY ROTATION

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company and the provisions of the Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013,
Mr. Ashish Agarwal, Whole-time Director (DIN: 08064196), will retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

The requisite agenda for re-appointment of Mr. Ashish Agarwal (DIN: 08064196) is incorporated in the notice of Annual General
Meeting.
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V. RE-APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

The Members of the Company at their 30th Annual General Meeting held on September 16, 2023 had appointed Mr. Ashish Vyas
(DIN: 10264901) as the independent director of the Company for a period of 1 year commencing from August 5, 2023 to
August 4,2024. In view of the same, his tenure has expired on August 4, 2024.

The Members are also informed that pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Independent Directors
shall be eligible for re-appointment for second term of five years if special resolution is passed by the members of the Company to
that effect.

Accordingly, on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors have approved the re-
appointment of Mr. Ashish Vyas (DIN: 10264901) as Independent Director for a second term of 3 years commencing from
August 5, 2024 to August 4, 2027 vide Circular resolution dated August 1, 2024.

The draft resolution for re-appointment of the Independent Director and his detailed profile has been included in the notice
convening the AGM and the details of the proposal for re-appointment are mentioned in the explanatory statement of the notice.

. KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

The following persons are the Whole-time Key Managerial Personnel’s (KMP’s) of the Company as per the provisions of Section
203 of the Companies Act, 2013 as on March 31, 2024:

Mr. A. K. Mittal - Managing Director
Mr. Ashish Agarwal - Whole-time Director
Mr. Mahesh Bhootra- Chief Financial Officer
Mr. Tejas Dawda - Company Secretary

24. DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Company has received necessary declarations from all the Independent Directors of the Company confirming that they fulfill the
criteria of Independence prescribed both under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(b) of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and that they have complied with the Code of Conduct for Independent
Directors as specified in Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013.

Further, the Independent Directors of the Company have registered themselves with the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs (IICA) for
recording their names and other requisite details in the Databank of Independent Directors maintained with 1ICA.

In terms of Section 150 of the Act read with Rule 6(4) of the Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, Mr. Rajiv
Bakshi (DIN: 00264007), Independent Director on the Board of the Company is exempted from appearing in the online proficiency self-

assessment test conducted by the [ICA.

Further, Mr. Vinod Kumar Kathuria (DIN: 06662559) and Mr. Ashish Vyas (DIN: 10264901) have duly cleared the online proficiency self-
assessment test conducted by the IICA. The Board is of the opinion that Independent Directors of the Company hold highest standards
of integrity and possess requisite qualifications, expertise & experience

.DECLARATION FROM DIRECTORS AND PRACTISING PROFESSIONAL

Based on the written representations as received from the Directors of the Company, none of the Directors of the Company is
disqualified to act as a director as on March 31, 2024.

M/s. Ragini Chokshi & Co, Practicing Company Secretaries and Secretarial Auditor of the Company, have also certified that none of the
Directors of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as director of the Company by SEBI or
Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other statutory authority. The certificate received from Secretarial Auditor to this effect forms
Annexure - 6 to this Board’s Report.

.PERFORMANCE EVALUATION AND MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

With the objective of enhancing the effectiveness of the Board, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee formulated the
methodology and criteria to evaluate the performance of the Board, its Committee and each Director.

The evaluation of the performance of the Board, Committees and each Director is based on the approved criteria laid down in the
Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company.

The Independent Directors also held a separate meeting to review the performance of the non-independent Directors, the Chairman of
the Company, the overall performance of the Board along with its Committees.

The details of performance evaluation conducted during the Financial Year 2023-24 is provided in ‘Report on Corporate Governance’
forming part of the Annual Report.

.MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

Regular meetings of the Board are held to discuss and decide on various business policies, strategies, financial matters and other
businesses. During the year under review, the Board met Four times. The details of the Board Meetings and the attendance of the
Directors at the meetings are provided in the Corporate Governance Report, which forms part of this Annual Report. The maximum
interval between any two meetings did not exceed 120 days.
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28.BOARD COMMITTEES:
I. MANDATORY COMMITTEES
The Board of Directors has four Mandatory Committees, viz.
i. Audit Committee
ii. Nomination and Remuneration Committee
iii. Stakeholders’Relationship Committee
iv. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

The details of all the Mandatory Committees along with their Composition, Terms of Reference and Meetings held during the year
are provided in ‘Report on Corporate Governance’forming part of the Annual Report.

. NON-MANDATORY COMMITTEES

In addition to the above referred Mandatory Committees, the Board has also formed the following Committees of the Board and
delegated powers and responsibilities with respect to specific purposes:

i. Banking and Investment Committee
ii. Management Committee

Details of Non-Mandatory Committees as mentioned above along with their Composition and Terms of Reference are provided in
‘Report on Corporate Governance’forming part of the Annual Report.

29. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Company'’s policy on directors’ appointment and remuneration including criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes,
independence of a Director and other matters provided under Section 178(3) of the Act is mentioned and elaborated in the Nomination
and Remuneration Policy.

The Nomination and Remuneration Policy is attached as Annexure - 1 to this Report.

.CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

In accordance with the requirements of the provisions of Section 135 of the Act read with the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, the Company has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”) Committee. The
Composition and Terms of Reference of the CSR Committee is provided in the Corporate Governance Report forming part of this
Annual Report.

The Company has also formulated a CSR Policy which is available on the website of the Company at
https://www.akgroup.co.in/docs/CORPORATE%20SOCIAL%20RESPONSIBILITY%20POLICY-2023-24.pdf

The details of CSR activities undertaken during the Financial Year 2023-24 by the Company is attached as Annexure - 2 and forms an
integral part of this Report.

. WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY AND VIGIL MECHANISM

Pursuant to Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder and as per Regulation 22 of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company has in place a Whistle Blower Policy ('Vigil Mechanism')
for reporting genuine concerns over happening of instances of any irregularity, unethical practice and/or misconduct involving the
directors and employees. The Policy may be accessed on the Company’s website at the link:

https://www.akgroup.co.in/docs/Vigil%20mechanism%20WhistleBlower%20policy.pdf

There was noinstance of any such reporting received during the year under review.

.POLICY FOR PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE

The Company has adopted a Policy on Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace at group
level and has duly constituted an Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) in line with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women
at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder. The Policy has been widely
communicated internally and is placed on the Company’s website.

Internal Complaints Committee has been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment.
During the Financial Year 2023-24, no case in the nature of sexual harassment was reported at any workplace of the Company.

The Annual Report for the calendar year 2023 prepared by the Internal Complaints Committee of the Company as per the provisions of
Section 21 of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 read with Rule 14 of the
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Rules, 2013 was duly submitted to The District
Officer-Women and Child Development located at Chembur.

.MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Report on Management Discussion and Analysis for the year under review as required under Regulation 34(2) of the Listing
Regulations, is set out separately and forms part of this Annual Report.

A Report on Corporate Governance as stipulated under Regulations 17 to 27 and Para C, D, and E of Schedule V of the Listing
Regulations, as amended from time to time, is set out separately and forms part of this Report. The Company has been in compliance
with all the norms of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27 and Clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2) and Para C,
D, and E of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations, as amended from time to time.
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34. SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder, the Company has appointed
M/s. Ragini Chokshi & Co, Practicing Company Secretaries to conduct the Secretarial Audit of the Company for Financial Year ended
March 31, 2024. The Company provided all the reasonable assistance and essential facilities to the Secretarial Auditors for conducting
their audit.

The Secretarial Audit Reportis appended as Annexure - 3 to this Report.
There is no qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer made by the Auditor in their Report.

In accordance with SEBI Circular no. CIR/CFD/CMD1/27/2019 dated February 08, 2019, the Company has obtained, from the
Secretarial Auditors of the Company an Annual Secretarial Compliance Report. The copy of Secretarial Compliance Certificate for the
financial year ended March 31, 2024 is available on the Website of the Company at the below link,

https://www.akgroup.co.in/docs/ANNUAL%20SECRETARIAL%20COMPLIANCE%20REPORT-%20MARCH%2031,%202024.pdf
There is no qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer made by the Auditor in the Secretarial Compliance Certificate.

35. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY REGULATORS AND COURTS

There is no significant and material order passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting the going concern status and
Company’s operation in future during the Financial Year 2023-24.

36. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The operations of the Company are not energy intensive. However, adequate measures for conservation of energy, usage of alternate
sources of energy and investments for energy conservation, wherever required have been taken. The Company makes all efforts
towards conservation of energy, protection of environment and ensuring safety.

The Company recognizes the significance of robust IT infrastructure in the current era, where it is crucial to offer clients faster and more
efficient services. Towards this end, the Company makes a sizeable investment each year to ensure adoption of best technologies that
can streamline operations, brings in efficiency and enable to provide better customer service to make the Company more competitive in
the market.

Your Company has no foreign exchange earnings and outgo during the Financial Year 2023-24.

37.ACHIEVEMENTS & AWARDS
a) The Company has been felicitated with the prestigious award of “India Bond House of the Year” at the IFR Asia Awards 2023 which
was held on April 16, 2024 at Hong Kong.

The Company acted as a Lead Manager to Green Bonds Issue of INR 244 Crores by Indore Municipal Corporation (IMC). The Issue
received bumper response from investors with total bids received worth INR 720 Crores viz. 5.9 times against the basic issue size of
INR 122 Crores.

The Company has been awarded “Issuer Investment Banker / Merchant Banker of the year” - Runner Up by Associated
Chambers of Commerce and Industry of India (ASSOCHAM) at the “6th National Summit & Awards Corporate Bond Market 2023”
organized on August 3, 2023 at Mumbai.
Ms. Aditi Mittal — Non-executive Woman Director of the Company was invited as an esteemed panelist for a panel discussion on the
theme “Innovative Solutions for Financing Infrastructure” organized by IIFCL a Government of India undertaking under
Ministry of Finance on January 6, 2023.
The Company acted as Sole Lead Manager and was instrumental in successfully closing the Maiden Public issue of NCDs by Credit
Access Grameen Limited which is one of India’s Largest NBFC — Microfinance Institution. The NCD issue got listed on November
25, 2022 at National Stock Exchange. The NCD Issue aggregating to INR 500 Crores saw oversubscription on the first day of the
Issue opening, getting oversubscribed by 3 times over the base issue size.
The Company has been awarded “Investment Banker / Merchant Banker of the year” by Associated Chambers of Commerce
and Industry of India (ASSOCHAM) at the “5th National Summit & Awards Corporate Bond Market 2022” organized on May 12, 2022
at Mumbai.
The brief details of recognition, awards and accolades are provided in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report, which forms
part of this Annual Report.

.DEPOSITORY SYSTEM

The Equity Shares of the Company are compulsorily traded in electronic form. As on March 31, 2024, out of the Company’s total paid-up
Equity Share Capital comprising of 66,00,000 Equity Shares, out of which 65,86,587 Equity Shares (constituting 99.80% of the paid-up
share capital) have been dematerialized.

As per SEBI notification No. SEBI/LAD-NRO/GN/2018/24 dated June 8, 2018 and further amendment vide notification No. SEBI/LAD-
NRO/GN/2018/49 dated November 30, 2018, requests for effecting transfer of securities is not processed from April 1, 2019 unless the
securities are held in the dematerialised form with the depositories.

Further, with effect from January 24, 2022, transmission or transposition of securities held in physical or dematerialised form is also
effected only in dematerialised form.

Therefore, Members holding securities in physical form are requested to take necessary action to dematerialize their holdings.

.INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND (IEPF)

In accordance with the applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013 read with Investor Education and Protection Fund (Accounting,
Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 (“IEPF Rules”), all unclaimed dividends are required to be transferred by the Company to the
IEPF, after completion of seven (7) years. Further, according to IEPF Rules, the shares on which dividend has not been claimed by the
shareholders for seven (7) consecutive years or more shall be transferred to the demat account of the IEPF Authority.
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The information pertaining to unclaimed and un-encashed dividends for last seven years and the details of such members whose
unclaimed dividend / shares have been transferred to IEPF Authority is also available on the Company’s website www.akgroup.co.in

During the year, the Company has transferred the unclaimed and un-encashed dividends for the financial year 2015-2016 of
INR 108,288/- (Indian Rupees One Lakh Eight Thousand Two Hundred and Eighty Eight only). Further, the unclaimed and un-encashed
dividends for the financial year 2016-2017 of INR 2,62,266/- (Indian Rupees Two Lakhs Sixty Two Thousand Two Hundred and Sixty Six
Only) is due for transfer to IEPF Authority in October 2024.

Further, 3,450 corresponding shares on which dividends were unclaimed for seven consecutive years were transferred as per the
requirements of the IEPF Rules. The details of the resultant benefits arising out of shares already transferred to the IEPF, year-wise
amounts of unclaimed / un-encashed dividends lying in the unpaid dividend account up to the year, and the corresponding shares,
which are liable to be transferred, are also available on our website, at www.akgroup.co.in.

. COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARD

The Company has complied with Secretarial Standards issued by Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) on Meetings of the
Board of Directors (SS-1) and General Meeting (SS-2) including relaxation provided therein.

. WEBLINK OF ANNUAL RETURN

A weblink of Annual Return for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024, in Form MGT — 7 as required under Section 92 (3) of the Act
read with Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 is available on the website of the Company at the
link: https://www.akgroup.co.in/docs/FORM%20MGT-7_FY%202023-24.pdf

.PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule
5 of The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and amendments thereto, are provided in
the Annual Report and is attached as Annexure —5 and forms an integral part of this Report.

Information as required in terms of the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of The
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is available for inspection by the Members at the
Registered Office of the Company between 2 p.m. to 4 p.m. on any working day (Monday to Friday) up to the date of 31* Annual General
Meeting of the Company. Any member who is interested in obtaining such information may write to the Company Secretary and the
same will be furnished on such request.

. THE DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY
CODE, 2016 DURING THE YEAR ALONGWITH THEIR STATUS AS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR

AsonMarch 31,2024 there is no proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

. THE DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT
AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE
REASONS THEREOF:

There is no one-time settlement done with bank or any financial institution.

45. CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

The statement in the Directors’ Report and the Management Discussion and Analysis Report describing the Company’s objectives,
expectations or predictions, may be forward looking within the meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations. Actual results may
differ materially from those expressed in the statement. These risks and uncertainties include the effect of economic and political
conditions in India, volatility in interest rates, new regulations and Government policies that may impact the Company’s business as well
as its ability to implement the strategy. The Company does not undertake to update these statements.

. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors wish to place on record their deep and sincere gratitude for the valuable guidance and support received from the
Depository Participants, Government Authorities, Regulators, Stock Exchanges, Bankers of the Company, Auditors of the Company,
Other Statutory Bodies, Clients, Consultants, Advisors, Registrar & Share Transfer Agent, Financial Institutions and Business Partners.
Your Directors would also like to take this opportunity to express their gratitude to the Members of the Company for their trust and
support. The Board also wishes to thank the employees of the Company and its subsidiaries at all levels for the dedicated services
rendered by them. Your Directors look forward to your continuing support.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

A. K. Mittal Vikas Jain
Managing Director Whole-time Director
(DIN: 00698377) (DIN: 07887754)

Place: Mumbai
Date: August 10, 2024
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NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY ANNEXURE -1

INTRODUCTION:

One of the vital values of an enterprise includes experience, skills, innovativeness and insights of its employees, officers, directors,
senior management, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and other human resource. A. K. Capital Services Limited (the “Company”)
believes in transparency in evaluating the performances of its Directors, Key Managerial Personnel’s (KMPs), Senior Management
and employees of the Company and paying equitable remuneration to them. The Company recognizes its human resource as an
invaluable asset.

In terms of the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as amended from time to time), this policy has been formulated by
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board.

OBJECTIVES OF THE POLICY:
The Key objectives of the Policy are:

That the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate directors of the quality
required to run the Company successfully.

Thatthe relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks.

To formulate criteria for evaluation of performance of the Board of Directors and Members of other Committees of the Board,
KMPs and Senior Management and other employees of the Company and recommend remuneration payable to them to the
Board.

To formulate criteria for evaluation of Chairman, Independent Directors, Board as a whole and the Committees of the Board.

To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a directors and recommend to the
Board a policy relating to the remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees.

Identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed as Key Managerial Personnel (“‘KMP”) and
Senior Management Personnel (“SMP”) and recommend to the board of directors their appointment and removal.

To evaluate the performance of the members of the Board and provide necessary report to the Board for further evaluation of the
Board.

To assist the Board in fulfilling responsibilities.
To retain, motivate and promote talent and to ensure their sustainability and create competitive advantage.
To implement and monitor policies and processes regarding principles of corporate governance.

DEFINITIONS:
a) ‘Act’meansthe CompaniesAct, 2013 and the rules framed there under.
b) ‘Board of Directors’or ‘Board’in relation to a Company, means the collective body of the Directors of the Company.
c) ‘Company’meansA.K Capital Services Limited.
)

‘Director’ means a Director appointed to the Board of the Company. The term Director shall mean and include Whole-time
Director & Non-Executive Directors (including Independent Directors) of the Company. However, the term shall not include the
employees occupying the functional designation of Director within the organization.

e) ‘Independent Director’ means an independent director referred to in sub-section (6) of Section 149 of Companies Act, 2013
and Regulation 16 (b) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

f) ‘Key Managerial Personnel’means key managerial personnel as defined under the Companies Act, 2013 and includes:-
) Managing Director, or Chief Executive Officer or Manager;

i
ii) Company Secretary;

iv) Chief Financial Officer;

(
(
(iii) Whole-time Director;
(
(

v) such other officer, not more than one level below the directors who is in whole-time employment, designated as key
managerial personnel by the Board; and

(vi)such other officer as may be prescribed
‘Policy’means this Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company.

‘Senior Management or Senior Management Personnel’ shall mean officers/personnel of the listed entity who are members
of its core management team excluding board of directors and normally this shall comprise all members of management one
level below the “Chief Executive Officer/Managing Director/Whole Time Director/Manager” (including chief executive
officer/manager, in case they are not part of the board) and shall specifically include the functional heads, by whatever name
called and the Company Secretary and the Chief Financial Officer.

i) ‘Whole-time Director’means a director in the whole-time employment of the Company and includes Managing Director.
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INTERPRETATION:

Terms that have not been defined in this policy shall have the same meaning assigned to them in the Companies Act, 2013,
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and/or any other
Act/Regulation as may be in force and as and when itis amended from time to time.

APPLICABILITY OF THE POLICY:

This Policy is applicable to:

a)
b)
c)

Directors viz. Whole-time Director, Non-Executive and Independent Directors;
Key Managerial Personnel;
Senior Management.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE OF THE COMPANY:

a)

b)

<)
d)

The Board of Directors of the Company shall constitute the Committee to be known as the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee consisting of at least three Directors, all of whom shall be Non-Executive Directors and at least two-thirds of the
members shall be Independent Directors. The Chairperson of the Committee shall be an independent Director.

The quorum for a meeting of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall be either two members or one third of the
members of the committee, whichever is greater, including at least one independent director in attendance.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once in ayear.
Role of Nomination & Remuneration Committee inter-alia, shall include the following:

(i) formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and
recommend to the board of directors a policy relating to, the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and
other employees;

(ii) formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the board of directors;
devising a policy on diversity of board of directors;

identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management in
accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the board of directors their appointment and removal;

whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis of the report of
performance evaluation of independent directors;

recommend to the board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management;

to perform such other duties and responsibilities as enumerated in the Companies Act, 2013, SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015 and/or informed by the Board of Directors of the Company from time
totime.

APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS, KMP AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT:

a) The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and experience of the person for appointment as
Director, KMP or at Senior Management level and recommend to the Board his/ her appointment.

b)

c)

The Committee shall have the discretion to decide whether qualification, expertise and experience possessed by a person is
sufficient/ satisfactory for the concerned position.

Appointment of Independent Director is subject to compliance of provisions of Section 149 of the Act read with Schedule IV, rules
made thereunder, other applicable regulations of SEBI (Listing and Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 and Circulars as issued by BSE from time to time.

In addition to the above, the appointment of directors including managing directors, whole time directors, non-executive directors
and independent directors shall be in accordance with the provisions of the Act, including Schedules IV and V of the Act and the
Rules made thereunder and the other applicable regulations of the SEBI (Listing and Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

The Company shall not appoint or continue employment of any person as Managing Director or Whole-time Director who has
attained the age of seventy years. Provided that the term of the person holding this position may be extended beyond the age of
seventy years with the approval of shareholders by passing a special resolution based on the explanatory statement annexed to
the notice for such motion indicating the justification for extension of appointment beyond seventy years.

The Company shall not appoint or continue employment of any person as Non-Executive Director who has attained the age of
seventy five years. Provided that the term of the person holding this position may be extended beyond the age of seventy five
years with the prior approval of shareholders by passing a special resolution based on the explanatory statement annexed to the
notice for such motion indicating the justification for extension of appointment beyond seventy five years.

TERM/ TENURE:

a) Managing Director/ Whole-time Director:

The Company shall not appoint or re-appoint any person as its Executive Chairperson, Managing Director or Whole-time
Director for a term exceeding five years at a time. No re-appointment shall be made earlier than one year before the expiry of
term.
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b) Independent Director:

(i) An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive years on the Board of the Company and will be
eligible for re-appointment on passing of a special resolution by the Company and disclosure of such appointment in the
Board's report.

(i) No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms, but such Independent Director shall be
eligible for appointment after expiry of three years of ceasing to become an Independent Director. Provided that an
Independent Director shall not, during the said period of three years, be appointed in or be associated with the Company
in any other capacity, either directly or indirectly.

No independent director, who resigns from the Company, shall be appointed as an executive / whole time director on the
board of the Company, its holding, subsidiary or associate company or on the board of a company belonging to its
promoter group, unless a period of one year has elapsed from the date of resignation as an independent director

At the time of appointment of Independent Director it should be ensured that number of Boards on which such
Independent Director serves is restricted to seven listed companies as an Independent Director and three listed
companies as an Independent Director in case such person is serving as a Whole-time Director/ Managing Director of a
listed company or such other number as may be prescribed under the Act.

c) Senior Management personnel/ KMP: Further the term/ tenure of Senior Management personnel & Key Managerial Personnel
of the Company shall be governed by the prevailing HR Policy of the Company.

EVALUATION :

The Committee shall carry out evaluation of performance of every Director, members of committees of the Board, KMP, Board
Committees, Board as a whole and Senior Management, at regular interval (at least once in every year). The results of performance
evaluation shall be the basis of remuneration proposed/ amended from time to time by the Committee.

REMOVAL.:

Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Act, Policies of the Company, or under any other applicable Act, rules and
regulations there under, the Committee may recommend, to the Board with reasons recorded in writing, removal of a Director, KMP
or Senior Management Personnel subject to the provisions and compliance of the said Act, rules and regulations.

RETIREMENT:

The Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel may retire as per the applicable provisions of the Act and the prevailing
policy of the Company. Subject to applicable provisions of laws, the Board will have the discretion to retain the Director, KMP, Senior
Management Personnel in the same position/ remuneration or otherwise even after attaining the retirement age, for the benefit of
the Company

FAMILIARISATION OF THE NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (NED’S) INCLUDING INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS WITH THE
COMPANY:

Regulation 25(7) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended from time to
time, requires a Company to provide suitable training to its Independent Directors to familiarize them inter alia with the
company, their roles, rights, responsibilitiesin the company, nature of industry in which the company operates and the business
model of the company.

Accordingly, in order to familiarize the Company’s Non-Executive Directors (NEDs) including Independent Directors with the
Company’s functioning and their roles, responsibilities, etc. the Company may undertake the following:

a) The newly appointed NEDs including Independent Directors shall be provided with a copy of the Memorandum and Articles of
Association, all the applicable codes, policies, etc. formulated and adopted from time to time.

b) The newly appointed NEDs including Independent Directors may also be introduced to certain key members of the Senior
Management of the Company.

c) A detailed briefing on the roles and responsibilities of Independent Directors shall also be provided to the Independent
Directors as part of their appointment letters.

d) To provide details of any changes/ amendments in the laws impacting the working of the Company.

DUTIES OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

Duties of the Independent Directors shall be as specified in Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions
of Law.

CRITERIAFOR REMUNERATION:
a) Whole-time Directors:

Amongst other, key evaluation criteria/Performance Benchmark shall be the guiding force or key indicators while determining
the remuneration of Whole-time Directors.
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b) Non-Executive Directors including Independent Directors:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall decide the basis for determining the compensation, both Fixed and
variable, payable to the Non-Executive Directors, including Independent Directors, whether as commission or otherwise. It shall
take into consideration various factors such as director’s participation in Board and Committee meetings during the year, other
responsibilities undertaken, such as membership or Chairmanship of committees, time spent in carrying out their duties, role
and functions as envisaged in Schedule 1V of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and such other factors as may deem fit for determining the compensation. The Board shall
determine the compensation to Non-Executive Directors within the overall limits specified in the Shareholders resolution, if
applicable.

c) Key Managerial Personnel/ Senior Management

Remuneration to KMPs of the Company, who is in whole time employment, designated by the Board as KMP shall be determined
by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee from time to time. The remuneration shall be consistent with the competitive
position of the salary for similar positions in the industry and their qualifications, experience, roles and responsibilities. Pursuant
to the provisions of Section 203 of the Act, the Board shall approve the remuneration at the time of their appointment.

REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS, KMP & SENIOR MANAGEMENT :

a) The Remuneration/ Compensation/ Commission etc. to be paid to Director/ Whole-time Directors/ KMP/ Senior Management
etc. shall be governed as per the provisions of Section 149, 197 read with Schedule V and such other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made there under or any other enactment for the time being in force, and pursuant to
Regulation 17 & 19 and other such applicable regulations of SEBI (Listing Obligation & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015.

b) The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall make such recommendations to the Board of Directors, as it may consider
appropriate with regard to remuneration to Director/ Whole-time Directors/ KMP/ Senior Management.

c) Subject to the applicable provisions of law for the time being in force and appropriate consents and permissions, the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee of the Board shall have power to determine remuneration and modify/ amend the same within the
overall limits of Section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act, applicable provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations 2015 & Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder. The remuneration may be decided as
fixed and/or variable or combination of both.

In case of inadequacy of profits, the remuneration may be recommended/ paid to the Whole-time Directors as well as Non-
Executive Directors including Independent Directors on the Board in line with the provisions of Section 149, 197 read with
Schedule V of the Act and Rules made thereunder subject to the passing of special resolution by the members of the Company
as and when applicable. The amount of sitting fees to Independent Directors shall be subject to ceiling/ limits as provided under
Actand rules made there under or any other enactment for the time being in force.

The fees or compensation payable to Executive directors who are Promoters or members of the Promoter group, shall be
subject to the approval of the Shareholders by special resolution in general meeting, if-

(i) the annual remuneration payable to such executive director exceeds INR 5 crores or 2.5 per cent of the net profits of the
listed entity, whichever is higher; or

(ii) where there is more than one such director, the aggregate annual remuneration to such directors exceeds 5 per cent of
the net profits of the listed entity:

Provided that the approval of the shareholders shall be valid only till the expiry of the term of such director.

Approval of shareholders by way of special resolution shall be obtained every year, in which the annual remuneration payable to
a single non-executive Director exceeds 50% of total remuneration payable to all non-executive Directors, giving details of
remuneration thereof. The amount of such remuneration shall be such as may be recommended by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board of Directors or shareholders, as the case may be.

g) An Independent Director shall not be eligible to get stock options and also shall not be eligible to participate in any share based
payment schemes of the Company.

h) The remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management shall consist of fixed pay and incentive pay, in
compliance with the provisions of the Act and in accordance with the Company’s Policy. The Fixed pay shall include monthly
remuneration, employer’s contribution to Provident Fund, contribution to pension fund, pension schemes, etc. as decided from
time to time. The Incentive, if any shall be decided based on the balance between performance of the Company and
performance of the Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management, to be decided annually or at such intervals as may be
considered appropriate.

NOMINATION DUTIES:
The duties of the Committee in relation to nomination matters include:

a) Shallidentify persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management and recommend
to the Board their appointment and removal;

b) Ensuring that there is an appropriate induction in place for new Directors and members of Senior Management and reviewing its
effectiveness;

c) Ensuring that on appointment to the Board, Non-Executive Directors receive a formal letter of appointment in accordance with
the guidelines provided under the Act. The letter of appointment / re-appointment to be issued to the Independent Director shall
inter alia also set out the matters as stated in Schedule 1V of the Companies Act, 2013 and shall be placed on the website of the
Company;
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d) Identifying and recommending Directors who are to be put forward for retirement by rotation;

e) Determining the appropriate size, diversity and composition of the Board;

f) Setting aformal and transparent procedure for selecting new Directors for appointment to the Board;
Developing a succession plan for the Board and Senior Management and regularly reviewing the plan;

Evaluating the performance of the Board members and Senior Management in the context of the Company’s performance from
business and compliance perspective;

Making recommendations to the Board concerning any matters relating to the continuation in office of any Director at any time
including the suspension or termination of service of an Executive Director as an employee of the Company subject to the
provision of the law and their service contract. Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent
director, on the basis of report of performance evaluation of independent Directors;

Delegating any of its powers to one or more of its members or the Secretary of the Committee;
Recommend any necessary changes to the Board; and
Considering any other matters, as may be requested by the Board.

m) NRC shall be authorized to undertake any action / step required to be taken to comply with the requirements prescribed under the
Applicable Laws.

REMUNERATION DUTIES:
The duties of the Committee in relation to remuneration matters include:

a) To consider and determine the Remuneration Policy, based on the performance and also bearing in mind that the remuneration
is reasonable and sufficient to attract retain and motivate members of the Board and such other factors as the Committee shall
deem appropriate all elements of the remuneration of the members of the Board.

To approve the remuneration of the Senior Management including key managerial personnel of the Company maintaining a
balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the
Company.
Subject to the provisions of the law, to delegate any of its powers to one or more of its members or the Secretary of the
Committee.

d) Toconsidertaking up Professional indemnity and liability insurance for Directors and Senior Management, if required.

e) Toconsider any other matters as may be requested by the Board.

REVIEW AND AMENDMENT IN POLICY:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee or the Board may review the Policy as and when it deems necessary. The Company
shall reserve the rights to make alterations/ amendments to the Policy from time to time to ensure compliance with any modification,
amendment or supplementation to the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under, the Listing Agreements, the Securities
and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 and rules/ regulations/ guidelines made there under, the Memorandum and Articles of
Association of the Company or as may be otherwise prescribed by the Board from time to time.

In case of any amendments in the provisions of the Act, which makes any of the provisions/ clauses in the Policy inconsistent with
the Act, then the provisions of the Act would prevail over the Policy and the Policy shall stand amended effective from date of such
amendments, as notified from time to time.

DESSIMINATION:

The details of the Policy and the evaluation criteria as applicable shall be disclosed in the Annual Report as part of Board’s Report
therein.
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ANNEXURE -2

REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES FOR FINANCIAL YEAR 2023 - 24
[Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014]

1. A BRIEF OUTLINE ON CSR POLICY OF THE COMPANY: A detailed CSR Policy was framed by the Company with approvals of the
CSR Committee and Board of Directors. The Policy, inter alia, covers the following:

Objective
Role of CSR Committee
List of CSR activities
CSR Expenditure
Implementation of CSR policy
Monitoring and reporting Mechanism
The CSR Policy is in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), including amendment thereto.

The Company’s participation focuses on those funds which shall supplement and complement government efforts to scale up the
capacity of the public health system and ability to deal with crisis.

The Company undertakes/ supports/ finances the projects/funds keeping in view the applicable provisions of Section 135 read with
Schedule VIl of the Act and CSR Policy of the Company.

2. COMPOSITION OF CSR COMMITTEE:

Number of meetings | Number of meetings
Sr. Name of Director Designation / Nature of | of CSR Committee a | of CSR Committee
No. Directorship Director is entitled to | attended during the
attend year

Chairman / Managing

Mr. A. K. Mittal Director

Member / Independent

Mr. Subhash Chandra Bhargava' )
Director

Member / Whole-time

. 2
Mr. Vikas Jain Director

Member / Independent

Director NA

Mr. Ashish Vyas®

Member / Whole-time

Director NA

Mr. Ashish Agarwal’

"Mr. Subhash Chandra Bhargava ceased to be Member of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee w.e.f. November 5, 2023.
2Mr. Vikas Jain ceased to be Member of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee w.e.f. November 5, 2023.

’Mr. Ashish Vyas was inducted as the Member of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee w.e.f. November 5, 2023.

“Mr. Ashish Agarwal was inducted as the Member of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee w.e.f. November 5, 2023.

. WEB-LINK OF THE DISCLOSURES:

Sg’,ﬂlﬁﬁfe'?” of CSR | 1 iips.//mwww.akgroup.co.in/docs/DETAIL S%200F %20BOARD%20COMMITTEES DEC.pdf

S{;gg}f’a”y s CSR https //www.akgroup.co.in/docs/CORPORATE %20SOCIAL %20RESPONSIBILITY%20POLICY-2023-24.pdf

CSR projects https://www.akgroup.co.in/docs/CORPORATE%20SOCIAL%20RESPONSIBILITY%20POLICY-2023-24.pdf

. Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Inpact Assessment of CSR Projects carried out in pursuance of sub-
rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable: NOT APPLICABLE

Average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135: INR 34,45,42,093/-

Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): INR 68,90,842/-

Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years: NA
Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: INR 24,913/-

Total CSR obligation for the financial year (b+c-d): INR 68,65,929/-
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6.
Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project): INR 68,70,000/-
Amount spent on Administrative Overheads: NA
Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: NA
Total amount spent for the Financial Year (a+b+c): INR 68,70,000/-
CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year:

Amount Unspent (in INR)
Total Amount

Spent for the Total Amount transferred to Unspent |[Amount transferred to any fund specified under Schedule
Financial Year CSR Account as per Section 135(6) VIl as per second proviso to Section 135(5)
(in INR)

Amount (in INR) | Date of transfer | Name of the Fund | Amount (in INR) | Date of transfer
INR 68,70,000* NIL Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable

*Note: Detailed bifurcation of Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project) for the
Financial Year 2023-24 is given below:

Sr. No. Funds as per Schedule VIl of Companies Act, 2013 Amount (in INR)

1 Clean Ganga Fund 20,00,000

Swach Bharat Kosh 20,00,000

Prime Minister's National Relief Fund 20,00,000
PM CARES Fund 8,70,000

Total 68,70,000

Excess amount for set off, if any:

Particular Amount (in INR)

Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of Section 135 (after set off of
68,65,929
excess amount of INR 24,913/-)

Total amount spent for the Financial Year 68,70,000

Excess amount spent for the Financial Year [(ii)-(i)] 4,071

Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous Financial Years, if

Nil
any

(v) | Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] 4,071

7. Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: Not Applicable

Balance
Amount Amount in Amount
transferredto | Unspent CSR | spent in the
Unspent CSR Account reporting
Account under under sub- Financial
Section 135 (6) | section (6) of | Year (in INR)
(in INR) section 132 Amount Date of

(in INR) Name of the Fund | . \NR) | transter | (nINR)

Amount transferred to any fund specified Amount
under Schedule VIl as per section 135(6), if | remaining to
any be spent in
succeeding
Financial
Years

Preceding
Financial
Year

Deficiency,
if any

8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year:
No

9. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per section 135(5): Not Applicable

For and on behalf of A. K. Capital Services Limited

A. K. Mittal Ashish Agarwal

Place: Mumbai (DIN: 00698377) (DIN: 08064196)
Date: August 10, 2024 (Managing Director & (Whole-time Director
Chairman CSR Committee) & Member CSR Committee)
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT ANNEXURE -3
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

To,

The Members,

A. K. Capital Services Limited
CIN-L74899MH1993PLC274881

603, 6th Floor, Windsor, Off CST Road,
Kalina, Santacruz (East) , Mumbai - 400 098

We, Ragini Chokshi & Co, Company Secretaries, have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by M/s. A. K. Capital Services Limited (“AK Capital”/ “Company”) having its Registered
Office at 603, 6th Floor, Windsor, Off CST Road, Kalina, Santacruz (East) , Mumbai -400 098. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner
that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/ statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on the verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the
Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of
secretarial audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended as on
March 31, 2024 has complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by AK Capital for the financial
year ended as on March 31, 2024 according to the provisions of:
(i)  The CompaniesAct, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the rules made thereunder;
i)  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘'SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

(
(i) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
(

iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder (to the extent of Foreign Direct
Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings);

(v) Thefollowing Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-
(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;
(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018;
(Not applicable during the audit period)

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulation 2021;
(Not applicable during the audit period)

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021;
(Not applicable during the audit period)

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding
the Companies Act and dealing with client; (Not applicable during the audit period)

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable to the
Company during the audit period)

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-Back of Securities) Regulations, 2018; (Not applicable during the audit
period)

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI
Listing Regulations,2015”)

We have relied on the representation made by the Company and its officer and compliance mechanism prevailing in the Company
and on examination of documents on test check basis for compliance of the following specific applicable laws and rules made
thereunder, being laws that are applicable to the Company based on their sector/ industry.

1) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Merchant Bankers) Regulations, 1992 including Guidelines, Circulars &
Notifications issued by SEBI & Stock Exchanges therein under.

2) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Investment Advisers) Regulations,2013, including Guidelines, Circulars &
Notifications issued by SEBI & Stock Exchanges therein under

3) The Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002
I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(ii) The Uniform Listing Agreement(s) entered into by the Company with BSE Limited pursuantto SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc.
mentioned above other than the those report below: -

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors,Non-Executive Directors and

Independent Directors. Further the changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review
was in accordance with the provision of the Companies Act,2013 & rules made thereunder and SEBI Listing Regulation,2015.
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Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven
days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.
Allthe decisions at Board and Committee meetings were taken with unanimous approval.
We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the
Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
We further report that during the audit period there were following specific events /actions reported having major bearing on
company’s operations;
Declaration and payment final dividend of INR 6/- (Indian Rupees Six) per equity share having face value of INR 10/- (Indian
Rupees Ten) each for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023.
Declaration and payment of interim dividend at INR 8/- (Indian Rupees Eight) per equity share having face value of INR 10/-
(Indian Rupees Ten) each for the Financial Year 2023-24.
Approval of Members sought at the Annual General Meeting held on September 16,2023 for Issuance of Commercial Paper
aggregating to Rs. 150 Crores.
Approval of Members sought at the Annual General Meeting held on September 16, 2023 for Issuance of Preference Shares of
nominal value aggregating to Rs.100 Crores.

Approved Issuance of Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) upto Rs.500 Crores within the overall borrowing limits of the
Company as set forth under Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act,2013 on Private Placement and Public issue basis by the
Board of Directors at their meeting held on August 5, 2023.

Amendment to Articles of Association pursuant to amendment to SEBI (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities)
Regulations, 2021.

Appointment of Mr. Rajiv Bakshi (DIN: 00264007) & Mr. Ashish Vyas (DIN: 10264901) as Non-Executive Independent Director of
the Company w. e. f. August 5, 2023.

Cessation of Mr. Khimji Shamji Pandav (DIN: 01070944) as Non-Executive Independent Director w.e.f December 18, 2023.
Appointment of Mr. Vinod Kumar Kathuria (DIN: 06662559) as Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company w.e.f
December 18, 2023.

Cessation of Mr. Subhash Chandra Bhargava (DIN: 00020021) as Chairman and Non Executive Independent Director w. e. f.
March 31,2024.

Appointment of Mr. Rajiv Bakshi as a Chairman of the Board for the period April 1,2024 to August 4,2026.
FOR RAGINI CHOKSHI & CO

UMASHANKAR HEGDE

(PARTNER)

M.No: A22133 # CP No- 11161

UDIN: A022133F000410191

Date: May 21, 2024 ICSI Unique Code: P1988MH056900
Place: Mumbai Peer Review Certificate No -659/2020

ANNEXURE TO SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
To,
The Members,
A. K. Capital Services Limited
CIN-L74899MH1993PLC274881

Ourreport of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the
contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial
records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.

. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and
happening of events etc.
The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of
management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.
. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with
which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company
FOR RAGINI CHOKSHI & CO

UMASHANKAR HEGDE

(PARTNER)

M.No: A22133 # CP No- 11161

UDIN: A022133F000410191

ICSI Unique Code: P1988MH056900

Date: May 21, 2024 Peer Review Certificate No -659/2020
Place: Mumbai
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FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To

The Members

A.K. STOCKMART PRIVATE LIMITED
601-602, 6th Floor, Windsor,

Off CST Road, Kalina, Santacruz (East),
Mumbai City, Maharashtra, India, 400098

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by M/s. A.K. Stockmart Private Limited (CIN: U67120MH2006PTC158932) (hereinafter

called the “Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in accordance with the guidance note issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India (“ICSI”) and in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory

compliances and expressing our opinion thereon in the Conduct of the Business of the Company during the year under review.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the secretarial records, standards, and procedures followed by the Company with respect to

secretarial compliances.

We believe that audit evidence and information obtained from the Company’s management is adequate and appropriate for us to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the

company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of the
secretarial audit, the explanations and clarifications given to us and the representations made by the Management, we hereby report thatin
our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering 1st April 2023 to 31st March 2024 (“The Reporting Period”) complied with
the statutory provisions listed hereunder, as amended from time to time and also that the Company has proper Board processes and

compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for the audit

period 1st April 2023 to 31st March 2024 according to the applicable provisions of:

i. The CompaniesAct2013 and the Rules made thereunder;

ii. The Depositories Act, 1996, and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

iii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the Rules made thereunder

iv. Foreign Exchange ManagementAct, 1999, and the applicable rules and regulations made thereunder; (Not Applicable)
The following Regulations and Guidelines are prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’)
whose provision and the circulars/guidelines issued thereunder, have been examined include:
a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011. (Not

Applicable)
. The SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations 2015 (Not Applicable).
. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015.
. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 (Not
Applicable).
. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 (Not
Applicable).
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of
Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021; - (Not Applicable).
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding
the Companies Act and dealing with clients. (Not Applicable).
. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021 (Not Applicable).
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back of Securities) Regulations 2018 (Not Applicable).
. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories Participants) Regulations 2018.
k. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Stock Brokers) Regulations 1992.
i. As confirmed by the Management, the Company has complied with the applicable clauses of Secretarial Standards on Meetings of

the Board of Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the ICSI.
During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines,

Standards, etc
We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with the proper balance of Executive Directors and

Non-Executive Directors (if any). The composition of the Board of Directors during the period under review was in compliance with
the provisions of the Act.
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Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on the agenda were sent in
advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting
and for meaningful participation at the meeting.
All decisions at Board Meetings are carried out either unanimously as recorded in the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors as
the case may be.
We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations of the
company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations, and guidelines.
We further report that during the audit period, there have been no events or actions that had a major bearing on its affairs in pursuance of the

above-referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc.

For Shivang G Goyal & Associates
Practicing Company Secretaries

Shivang Goyal

Proprietor

FCS — 11801 / C.P. No.- 24679

ICSI Unique Code: S2021MH811600
Peer Review: 5644/2024

UDIN: FO11801F000930851

Date: 08/08/2024
Place: Thane

“Annexure A”

To

The Members

A.K. STOCKMART PRIVATE LIMITED
601-602, 6th Floor, Windsor,

Off CST Road, Kalina, Santacruz (East),
Mumbai City, Maharashtra, India, 400098

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of Secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of
the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on a test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in
Secretarial records. We believe that the process and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.

. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the Compliance of laws, rules, regulations, events,
etc.

. Compliance with the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, and standards is the responsibility of
management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedure on a test basis.

. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with
which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company

. We further report that, based on the information provided by the Company its officers, authorized representatives during the conduct
of the audit and also on the review of internal audit report given by the respective professional taken on record by the Board, in our
opinion adequate systems and process and control mechanism exist in the Company to monitor compliance with applicable specific
laws like Securities and Exchange Board of India (Stock Broker) Regulations, 1992 and Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Depositories and Participants) Regulation, 2018.

. We further report that the Compliance by the Company of applicable Financial laws like Direct & Indirect tax laws has not been
reviewed in this audit since the same has been subject to review by the statutory financial audit and other designated professionals.

For Shivang G Goyal & Associates
Practicing Company Secretaries

Shivang Goyal

Proprietor

FCS — 11801/ C.P. No.- 24679

ICSI Unique Code: S2021MH811600
Peer Review:5644/2024

UDIN: F011801F000930851

Date: 08/08/2024
Place: Thane
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ANNEXURE - 4

Form No. AOC-2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties referred to in
sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm's length transactions under third proviso
thereto.

|. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis:

All contracts/arrangements/transactions entered into during the year ended March 31, 2024, were at arm's length basis.

Il. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis:

1) Name and Relationship with Related Party: A. K. Capital Finance Limited, Subsidiary

SN

Nature of Transaction

Value

(INR in
Lakhs)

Duration

Salient Terms

Date of Approval by
the Board

Amount
paid in
advance

Purchase of Investments
(excluding accrued interest)

16,005.86

Sale of Investments
(excluding accrued interest)

492.25

Corporate Guarantee given

27,500.00

Dividend Received

540.00

Commission received on
corporate guarantee

72.88

FY 2023-24

The related
party
transactions
(RPTs)
entered during
the year were
in the ordinary
course of
business and
on arm's
length basis.

Since these RPTs are inthe
ordinary course of business and are
at arm's length basis, approval of the
board is not applicable.

However, the said transactions were
part of omnibus list approved by
the Audit Committee and
Shareholders of the Company.

Nil

) Name and Relationship with Related Party: A. K. Stockmart Private Limited, Wholly-owned Subsidiary

SN

Nature of Transaction

Value
(INR in
Lakhs)

Duration

Salient Terms

Date of Approval by
the Board

Amount
paid in
advance

Brokerage Expenses

8.20

Demat Charges

Balance receivable

FY 2023-24

The related
party
transactions
(RPTs)
entered during
the year were
in the
ordinary
course of
business and
on arm's
length basis.

Since these RPTs are in the

ordinary course of business and are
at arm's length basis, approval of the
board is not applicable.

However, the said transactions were
part of omnibus list approved by the
Audit Committee of the Company.

Nil

) Name and Relationship with Related Party

: A. K. Mittal, Managing Director & Promoter

SN

Nature of Transaction

Value
(INR in
Lakhs)

Duration

Salient Terms

Date of Approval by
the Board

Amount
paid in
advance

Rent expenses

28.80

Rent Deposit given

FY 2023-24

The related
party
transactions
(RPTs)
entered during
the financial
year were in
the ordinary
course of
business and
on arm's
length basis

Since these RPTs are in the ordinary
course of business and are at arm's
length basis, approval of the board is
not applicable.

However, the said transactions were
part of omnibus list approved by the
Audit Committee of the Company.

Nil
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4) Name and Relationship with Related Party

Personnel

: India Bond Private Limited, Enterprises controlled by Key Management

SN Nature of Transaction

Value

(INR in
Lakhs)

Duration

Salient Terms

Date of Approval by
the Board

Amount
paid in
advance

Incentive Expense

175.61

Software expenses

Software license purchased

Rent received

Rent deposit received

Balance Payable

FY 2023-24

The related
party
transactions
(RPTs)
entered during
the financial
year were in
the ordinary
course of
business and
on arm's
length basis.

Since these RPTs are inthe
ordinary course of business and are
at arm's length basis, approval of the
board is not applicable.

However, the said transactions were
part of omnibus list approved by
the Audit Committee of the
Company.

Nil

For and on behalf of A. K. Capital Services Limited

A. K. Mittal
Managing Director

Vikas Jain

Place: Mumbai Whole-time Director

Date: August 10, 2024
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ANNEXURE - 5

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF
COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

Sr. No.

Requirements

Disclosure

1

The ratio of the remuneration of each director to
the median remuneration of the employees of the
Company for the Financial Year

Name of the Directors

Mr. A. K. Mittal

Mr. Ashish Agarwal

Mr. Vikas Jain

The percentage increase in remuneration of each
Director, Chief Financial Officer and the Company
Secretary in the Financial Year

Name of the Directors

Mr. A. K. Mittal NA

Mr. Ashish Agarwal 5.88%

Mr. Vikas Jain 12.11%

Percentage mentioned above for Mr. Ashish Agarwal and Mr. Vikas Jain
is calculated on the basis of fixed remuneration.

Key Managerial Personnel Ratio

Mr. Mahesh Bhootra - Chief Financial Officer 8.96%

Mr. Tejas Dawda - Company Secretary 17.09%

Percentage mentioned above for Mr. Mahesh Bhootra and
Mr.Tejas Dawda is calculated on the basis of fixed remuneration.

The percentage increase in the median
remuneration of employees in the Financial Year

During the Financial Year 2023-2024, the percentage increase in the
median remuneration of employees as compared to previous year was
approximately 14.50%.

The number of permanent employees on the rolls
of Company

There were 96 employees as on March 31, 2024

Average percentage increase already made in the
salaries of employees other than the managerial
personnel in the last financial year and its
comparison with the percentage increase in the
managerial remuneration and justification thereof
and point out if there are any exceptional
circumstances for increase in the managerial
remuneration.

Average increase in fixed salary of employees other than managerial
personnelis 15.88%.

Remuneration paid to Mr. Mahesh Bhootra, Chief Financial Officer was
increased by 8.96% based on the responsibilities entrusted on him.

Remuneration paid to Mr. Tejas Dawda was increased by 17.09% based
onthe responsibilities entrusted on him.

No other Key Managerial Personnel are in receipt of increased
remuneration as compared to the previous financial year.

Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the
remuneration policy of the company

It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration is paid as per the
Remuneration Policy for the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and
employees.

Place: Mumbai
Date: August 10, 2024

For A. K. Capital Services Limited

Vikas Jain
Whole-time Director
(DIN: 07887754)

A. K. Mittal
Managing Director
(DIN: 00698377)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

. Indian Economy

The Indian economy, showed a strong growth of 8.2% in FY 2024, according to the National Statistical Office’s (NSO) provisional
estimates of GDP for FY 2023-24. Despite challenges on the external front, such as weak demand, inflation concerns, supply chain
disruptions due to persistent geopolitical tensions, and volatile financial markets, the Indian economy displayed resilience throughout
FY 2023-24. This resilience is largely due to a shift from consumption to investment backed by healthy tax collections. In the financial
year, government push on capex is showing signs of growth in private investment. The current account deficit remained moderate and
domestic savings remained robust to finance the economy. The FY 2024 fiscal deficit which came at 5.63% of GDP was lower than the
budgeted target of 5.8% of GDP due to the reduction in expenditure. The INR depreciated by 1.4% during FY 2023-24, a marked
improvement from the 7.8% depreciation in the previous year. This performance made the INR one of the best-performing major
emerging market (EME) currencies during the year.

Given the dynamics between growth and inflation, the Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) maintained the policy repo rate at 6.50%
throughout FY24. The committee also upheld its stance of withdrawing accommodation to ensure inflation gradually aligns with the
target while continuing to support economic growth. Headline inflation eased to 5.4% in FY24 from 6.7% in FY23 due to intervention
from both fiscal and monetary policy measures undertaken. However, food inflation remained volatile through the year. Core inflation
reached its lowest level in the current CPI series in March 2024, reflecting well anchored inflation expectations. IMD has forecasted an
above normal monsoon during June-September 2024 which bodes well for the agriculture sector. High-frequency indicators suggest
robust domestic growth. Growth is supported by structural demand and strong corporate and bank balance sheets. Surveys indicate
optimism on business and consumer confidence, production, capacity, employment, order books, etc.

The Growth Environment

The quarterly real GDP growth for FY24 stood at 8.2% in Q1FY24, 8.1% in Q2FY24, 8.6% in Q3FY24, and 7.8% in Q4FY24. Net tax
growth saw significant uptick through the quarters which kept GDP growth buoyant (7.9% in Q1FY24, 12.7% in Q2FY24, 31.2% in
Q3FY24 and 22.2% in Q4FY24) and showed significant divergence from GVA at basic prices. The private final consumption expenditure
(PFCE) which indicates aggregate domestic demand saw weakness in the current financial year as it declined from 58% of GDP in FY23
t0 55.8% of GDP in FY24. Government final consumption expenditure (GFCE) which came at 9.5% of GDP in FY24 from 10% of GDP in
FY23, showed the government’s effort towards fiscal consolidation. Gross Fixed Capital Formation (GFCF) improved to 33.5% of GDP
in FY24 from 33.3% of GDP in FY23 on account of sustained focus on infrastructure spending.

The industrial index of production (lIP) rose to 7.5% in FY24 from 5.8% in FY23 backed by growth in manufacturing and mining. Urban
demand improved as indicated by higher employment, lower consumer inflation, higher disposable incomes, and a significant increase
in retail credit. GST Collections and E-way bill issuances saw robust growth. The rural economy saw recovery in H2FY24 as indicated by
higher demand for two-wheeler vehicles and decline in employment under Mahatma Gandhi National Rural Employment Guarantee Act
(MGNREGA). Additionally, domestic air, railway passenger traffic saw strong growth. Going forward, the RBI has projected real GDP
growth for FY25 at 7.25% and quarterly GDP growth at 7.30% in Q1FY25, 7.20% in Q2FY25, 7.30% in Q3FY25 and 7.20% in Q4FY25 -
indicating moderation in growth from FY24.

. Industry Structure and Bond Market Developments

The RBI held its policy rate unchanged at 6.50% throughout the financial year FY23-24 and maintained its stance of ‘withdrawal of
accommodation’. Consumer inflation moderated to 5.4% in FY23-24, down from 6.7% in FY22-24. The RBI estimates inflation to further
moderate to 4.5% in FY24-25. The transmission of repo rate hike undertaken in FY22-23 to banks’ lending rates continued in FY23-24
amidst moderation in surplus liquidity in the banking system and credit growth persistently outpacing deposit growth. G-sec yields
moderated during the year on the back of a favorable inflation print during the year, inclusion of government of securities in key indices,
and lower than expected market borrowing by the Union Government in the Union Budget FY24-25. Corporate bond yields moderated
tracking the G-secyields, and corporate bond issuances increased.

Fund raising through debt instruments continued the buoyancy in the previous financial year, both in public and private modes of
issuance. As per SEBI data, corporate public issuance of bonds registered a growth of around 108% to reach INR 19,168 crore in FY23-
24 from INR 9,221 crore in FY22-23. While, private placement of corporate bonds registered a growth of around 11% to reach INR 8.37
lakh crore in FY23-24 from INR 7.54 lakh crore in FY22-23. Total outstanding of corporate bonds rose to INR 47.29 lakh crore as on
FY23-24 from INR 43.14 lakh crore as on FY22-23. In the secondary market, total volume of corporate bonds trades at NSE and BSE
stood at INR 12.39 lakh cr. in FY23-24. Going forward, rating agency CRISIL estimates that the Indian corporate bond market will more
than double from its current level of ~INR 43 lakh cr. to INR 100-120 lakh cr. by FY29-30.

In September 2023, global financial firm JP Morgan announced the inclusion of India's government bonds in its widely tracked JP
Morgan EM Bond Index. Initially, a 10% weight was assigned to Indian government bonds, with incremental allocations of 1% starting in
June 2024 and continuing through March 2025. JP Morgan Emerging Market Global Diversified Index has assets under management of
about USD 213 billion by global investors. A 10% weight for Indian Government Bonds in the JP Morgan EM Bond Index should lead to
inflows worth USD 21 billion worth of investments by March 31, 2025. Soon after, in March 2024, Bloomberg made its own
announcement of India’s inclusion into its EM Local Currency Government indices. For the Bloomberg Index a similar allocation process
as JP Morgan’s is to followed staring from January, 2025 and will go on until October, 2025. According to a World Bank report, the
inclusion is expected to trigger capital inflows of USD 30-40 billion over the next year. This will free up an equivalent amount of domestic
financial resources for private sector investment.

During the year, Foreign Portfolio Investors (FPIs) have injected around INR 1.21 lakh cr. into Indian bonds in FY23-24, the highest level
since FY14-15 according to NSDL data. The increased appetite for Indian bonds can be attributed to the IGBs’inclusion in major indices.
The buoyancy is expected to continue for this financial year. This increasing interest is also making some overseas fund managers
consider launching exchange traded funds focused on Indian corporate debt. Overall, foreign capital movement in the domestic market
is expected to result in better supply-demand dynamics, thereby decreasing the capital cost of Indian incorporations.
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During FY 2023-24, some key initiatives taken by the regulatory authorities to deepen the bond market in India are as follows:

Reduction of Face Value of Bonds to INR 10,000: During FY 2023-24, SEBI proposed reducing the face value of debt securities to
INR 10,000 from the current INR 1 Lakh. The move is expected to increase non-institutional participation, thereby resulting in
increased liquidity and better price discovery.

Inclusion of Non-SLR Securities in Banks' HTM Portfolios: During the year, the RBI changed the investment portfolio norms for
banks. Banks can now include Non-SLR securities in their HTM portfolios. This is expected to create additional demand for
corporate bonds, matching the increasing supply in this segment.

iii. Fast tracking of Debt Public Issue: In order to enhance ease of doing business for listed debt issuers, the SEBI is considering

introducing the concept of 'fast track' public issuance for debt securities. SEBI also proposed a T+3 listing timeline for fast-track debt
issuances, versus the standard T+6, significantly reducing fundraising time.

4. OurBusiness

A. K. Capital Services Limited (“AK Capital”/ “Company”), incorporated on October 5, 1993, is Flagship Company of the
A. K. Group, and is registered with SEBI as a Category | Merchant Banker since April 1, 1998 which is valid permanently unless
suspended/ cancelled by SEBI.

AK Capital is one of the country’s leading merchant bank managing private placements as well as public issues of debt. AK Capital is
primarily engaged in providing various fee-based services such as fund mobilisation through issue of debt, structured hybrid
instruments, pass through certificates, direct assignments etc. for over 250 clients including India’s premier central and state
Government undertakings, public and private sector banks, financial institutions and private corporates. AK Capital aspires to
facilitate making the debt markets accessible to retail investors and relentlessly strives towards fulfilling its motto of “Building
Bonds”. AK Capital is acknowledged for its uynmatched management consultancy, advisory services, financial restructuring etc. and
is also one of the few merchant bankers who has direct access as counterparty to almost all domestic banks / institutions.

During the year, the Company has made an application to SEBI to surrender its Investor Adviser license. In view of the same, SEBI
and BSE Administration & Supervision Ltd. (BASL) have approved the application for Surrender of Certificate of Registration as
Investment Adviser vide email dated July 22, 2024.

AK Capital has 7 subsidiaries (including 2 step down subsidiaries) which conduct their operations through a network of branches
spread over 7 cities of India and 1 at Singapore. The group has interests in diversified business fields and the subsidiaries have been
incorporated to specialize and operate in each business area.

A. K. Capital Finance Limited (“AK Capital Finance”), a subsidiary of AK Capital, is registered with the Reserve Bank of India
(“RBI”) as a Systemically Important Non Deposit Accepting Middle Layer Non-Banking Financial Company (“NBFC-ND-SI”) and
categorised as Investment and Credit Company (NBFC-ICC). AK Capital Finance is engaged in the business of investment and
lending activities. The Company primarily operates in a hybrid business model, under which the revenue streams comprises of a
regular and stable interestincome from its loan book, fees income and treasury income from its investment and treasury book. The
lending book of AK Capital Finance comprises of term loans and instruments including non-convertible debentures issued by
companies rated investment grade and above. The treasury book includes G-Sec plus highly rated papers that are liquid and have
relatively lower risk. AK Capital Finance is amongst one of the few NBFCs having Tri-Party Repo Settlement (TREPS earlier known
as CBLO) membership given by the Clearing Corporation of India Limited (CCIL) which enables the company to access funds on tap
against SLR securities like G-Secs and SDLs at very competitive cost. AK Capital Finance has strong risk management policies and
credit appraisal systems in place, which have helped to maintain good asset quality over the years and the same is reflected by the
factthat there is Nil Non-Performing Assets as on March 31, 2024.

ii. A. K. Stockmart Private Limited (“AK Stockmart”), a wholly owned subsidiary of AK Capital incorporated in 2006 is full service

brokerage house with membership of India’s two key stock exchanges viz., National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE
Limited. AK Stockmart’s services span across equity and debt markets. Further, AK Stockmart is also registered as a Depository
Participant with the Central Depository Services (India) Limited (“CDSL”) and National Securities Depository Limited (“NSDL”) for
seamless settlement and clearing of securities.

Since FY 2009-10, AK Stockmart has distributed debt products of private sector companies as well as public sector companies such
as Tata Capital Financial Services Limited, Tata Capital Housing Finance Limited, L&T Finance Limited, Mahindra & Mahindra
Financial Services Limited, Aditya Birla Finance Limited, Cholamandalam Investment and Finance Company Limited, Muthoot
Finance Limited, Shriram Transport Finance Company Limited, Piramal Capital & Housing Finance Ltd., Poonawalla Fincorp
Limited (formerly Magma Fincorp Limited), Credit Access Gramin Limited, JM Financial Products Limited, Shriram City Union
Finance Limited, Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited, Indore Municipal Corporation, National Highways Infrastructure Trust (NHAI
InvIT), Power Finance Corporation Limited, REC Limited, National Highways Authority of India, NTPC Limited, NHPC Limited,
Indian Railway Finance Corporation Limited, India Infrastructure Finance Company Limited, Indian Renewable Energy
Development Agency Limited, National Bank for Agriculture and Rural Development.

iv. A. K. Wealth Management Private Limited (“AK Wealth”), incorporated in November 2006 and a wholly owned subsidiary of

AK Capital, is registered with SEBI as a Portfolio Management Company. AK Wealth is in the business of providing portfolio
management services, private wealth management, asset management, investment advisory and research backed investment
solutions to ensure returns commensurate to risk appetite of its clients. As on March 31, 2024, AK Wealth had 53 clients with Asset
Under Management of INR 49.67 Crores.

v. A.K. Capital Corporation Private Limited (“AK Capital Corporation”), incorporated in November 2006 is a wholly owned subsidiary

of AK Capital.

i. A.K.Capital (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. (“AK Singapore”), domiciled in Singapore, was incorporated on July 29, 2013 as a wholly owned
subsidiary of AK Capital. AK Singapore is registered with Monetary Authority of Singapore as a financial services company and
provides financial advisory services to its clients across the globe. It offers cross border funding solutions by identifying potential
investors to meet the fund raising needs of its clients. AK Singapore also offers the full range of money market operations in India to

Management Discussion and Analysis Report | 27




®
A. K. Capital Services Limited

meet both the lending and borrowing needs of its clients. The company’s research team has conducted in-depth studies of foreign
markets and is well-equipped to apply the gained technical information to help accelerate the company’s expansion in India and
other nascent debt markets.

ii. Family Home Finance Private Limited (“Family Home Finance”), is a step-down subsidiary of AK Capital through AK Capital
Finance. Family Home Finance is registered as a Housing Finance Company with the National Housing Bank and classified as
Middle Layer NBFC as per Scale Based Regulation issued by RBI. Family Home Finance primarily offers Home Loans, LAP and
secured lending products through co-lending, strategic partnership, Securitization and DA model with channel partners.

A. K. Alternative Asset Managers Private Limited (“AK Alternative”), incorporated in December 2022 is a step-down subsidiary of
AK Capital through AK Wealth. AK Alternative acts as an Investment Manager and provides Investment Management Services to
SEBI registered Alternative Investment Funds. During the year, A.K. Alternative commenced its operations to act as Investment
Manager.

. Execution and other services

AK Capital has marked a glorious journey of over 3 decades and has gained expertise as well as recognition in various facets of the
corporate bond markets by undertaking and successfully executing various landmark transactions.

AK Capital has been reckoned as a leading arranger for private placement of secured/ unsecured, senior/ subordinated, redeemable,
non-convertible debentures/ bonds, perpetual bonds, pass through certificates, redeemable preference shares, etc. for a diverse profile
of issuers comprising of:

. Central Public Sector Undertakings;
. State Government Undertakings;
Public and Private Sector Banks;
Public Financial Institutions;
Non-Banking Finance Companies;
Housing Finance Companies;
Infrastructure Finance Companies;
Infrastructure Development Funds;
Core Investment Companies;
Infrastructure Investment Trusts (InvITs);
Real Estate Investment Trusts (“REITs”); and
Manufacturing and services sector companies.

The Company acted as Sole Lead Manager and was instrumental in successfully closing the Maiden Public issue of NCDs by
Cholamandalam Investment and Finance Company Limited, which is the financial services arm of the Murugappa group. The Company
raised over INR 4,700 crores in four tranches during the year.

The Company successfully raised over INR 1,350 crores as Sole Lead Manager to three tranches of public issue of NCDs by Muthoot
Finance Limited during the year.

The Company also acted as a Lead Manager to Maiden Public issue of NCDs by Aditya Birla Finance Limited of INR 2,000 crores. The
issue received bumper response from investors viz. 2.46 times of the base issue size of INR 1,000 crores.

Also, the Company also acted as a Lead Manager to public issue of Bonds by Power Finance Corporation Limited of INR 5,000 crores.
The issue saw over subscription of 5.65 times of the base issue size of INR 500 corers.

. Recognition, Awards & Accolades

The Company has been felicitated with the prestigious award of “India Bond House of the Year” at the IFR Asia Awards 2023 which
was held on April 16, 2024 at Hong Kong.

The Company acted as a Lead Manager to Green Bonds Issue of INR 244 Corers by Indore Municipal Corporation (IMC). The Issue
received bumper response from investors with total bids received worth INR 720 Corers viz. 5.9 times against the basic issue size of
INR 122 Corers.

The Company has been awarded “Issuer Investment Banker / Merchant Banker of the year” - Runner Up by Associated
Chambers of Commerce and Industry of India (ASSOCHAM) at the “6th National Summit & Awards Corporate Bond Market 2023”
organized on August 3, 2023 at Mumbai.

Ms. Aditi Mittal — Non-executive Woman Director of the Company was invited as an esteemed panelist for a panel discussion on the
theme “Innovative Solutions for Financing Infrastructure” organized by IIFCL a Government of India undertaking under Ministry of
Finance on January 6, 2023.

The Company has been awarded “Investment Banker / Merchant Banker of the year” by Associated Chambers of Commerce
and Industry of India (ASSOCHAM) at the “5th National Summit & Awards Corporate Bond Market 2022” organized on May 12, 2022
at Mumbai.

i. The Company acted as Sole Lead Manager and was instrumental in successfully closing the Maiden Public issue of NCDs by Credit
Access Grameen Limited which is one of India’s Largest NBFC — Microfinance Institution. The NCD issue got listed on November
25, 2022 at National Stock Exchange. The NCD Issue aggregating to INR 500 Crores saw oversubscription on the first day of the
Issue opening, getting oversubscribed by 3 times over the base issue size.
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vii. The Company acted as Sole Lead Manager and was instrumental in successfully closing the Maiden Public issue of NCDs by
Cholamandalam Investment and Finance Company Limited, which is the financial services arm of the Murugappa group. The
Company raised over INR 4,700 crores in four tranches during the year.

The Company successfully raised over INR 1,350 crores as Sole Lead Manager to three tranches of public issue of NCDs by
Muthoot Finance Limited during the year.

ix. A.K.Stockmart Private Limited ranks amongst the highest mobilisers of subscription in debt public issues over past decade.
The group is one of the few merchant banking groups to have TREPS membership.

Besides private placements and public issues of debt, the Company and its subsidiaries have demonstrated their progressive
presence in undertaking and executing transactions in the following segments:

a. Loan syndication, project financing, syndication of short term debt (CPs etc.)

b. Syndication for Venture Capital Funds, Infrastructure Development Funds, structured hybrid financial products
c.Asset backed financing, investment and trading in debt securities, loan against property, real estate funding etc.
d.Direct assignment and securitization of receivables

e.Trading/investmentin Government Securities and Corporate Bonds

f. Stock broking, WDM broking and Depository services

g.Providing portfolio management services, private wealth management, asset management and investment advisory
h.Retirement fund advisory

i. Global financial advisory, cross border funding solutions, foreign currency bonds.

Outlook and Strategy

Domestic financial markets remained stable, with orderly movements in the bond and foreign exchange markets. Corporate bond yields
moderated tracking the G-sec yields. The outlook for the bond market looks favorable with the rate cut cycle expected to begin in
FY 2024-25.

The Reserve Bank of India (RBI) adopted a prudent monetary policy stance in 2023-24 to address the evolving growth-inflation
dynamics. Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) kept the policy repo rate unchanged at 6.50% throughout 2023-24 and maintained a
stance of withdrawal of accommodation. During H2:2023-24, the Reserve Bank issued an ultra-long security of 50-year tenor
aggregating INR 30,000 crore to cater to the growing needs of long-term institutional players.

The central government delivered on its fiscal consolidation commitments. The gross fiscal deficit (GFD) declined to 5.9% of GDP in
2023-24 (RE) from 6.4% of GDP in 2022-23. G-sec yields softened on favorable inflation prints, reports of inclusion of Indian bonds in
major global bond indices and lower than expected market borrowings by the Union Government in the interim Union Budget 2024-25.
The weighted average yield (WAY) on G-Secs issued during the year moderated to 7.24% in 2023-24 from 7.32% in the previous year.

In 2023-24, the global economy saw a notable slowdown, as reported by the International Monetary Fund (IMF), with growth decreasing
to 3.2% from 3.5% the previous year. This deceleration was primarily attributed to several factors including stringent monetary policies
aimed at curbing inflationary pressures, ongoing geopolitical tensions. The RBI projects real GDP growth at 7% for 2024-25,
underpinned by resilient domestic demand and improving investment momentum. Headline inflation is expected to moderate further to
4.5% in 2024-25, with risks broadly balanced. The RBI remains committed to aligning inflation to the 4% target on a durable basis, as
enduring price stability is crucial for sustained high growth.

During FY 2023-24, the key regulatory announcements made during the year were:
Classification, Valuation and Operation of Investment Portfolio of Commercial Banks (Directions), 2023
Fully Accessible Route’for Investment by Non-residents in Government Securities — Inclusion of Sovereign Green Bonds
Registration and regulatory framework for Online Bond Platform Providers (OBPPs)

New format of Abridged Prospectus for public issues of Non-Convertible Debt Securities and/or Non-convertible Redeemable
Preference Shares

Participation of Mutual funds in repo transactions on Corporate Debt Securities

Framework for Corporate Debt Market Development Fund (CDMDF)

Draft rules on bond forwards in government securities

Investment by Mutual Fund Schemes and AMCs in units of Corporate Debt Market Development Fund
Mechanism for Sharing of Information by Credit Rating Agencies (CRAs) to Debenture Trustees (Dts)

. Opportunities and Challenges
Opportunities

A.Debt markets have witnessed an exponential growth in the Country over last decade which may be seen from the table given below:

Private Placement of Debt (Non-Convertible Debentures/ Bonds

FY 2023-24 FY 2013-14

Total No. of issues Amount (INR in Crores) Total No. of issues Amount (INR in Crores)

3,359 10,19,842 1,686 2,88,367

Management Discussion and Analysis Report | 29




®
A. K. Capital Services Limited

b. According to a World Bank report, the inclusion of India's government bonds in the widely tracked JP Morgan EM Bond Index is
expected to trigger capital inflows of USD 30-40 billion over the next year. This is expected to free up an equivalent amount of
domestic financial resources for private sector investment and deepen the country’s corporate bond markets.

Challenges
Like any other market:
a. Corporate bond markets are venerable to market risks originating from volatility in interest rates;
. Operations in corporate bond markets are vulnerable to competition thereby affecting margins;
Besides marketrisks, corporate bonds are vulnerable to credit risk;

Growth and performance of domestic corporate bond markets is dependent upon a host of domestic and global macro and micro-
economic factors. India offers moderate-risk, high-yielding debt investment opportunities to offshore investors. However, any
significant tightening of monetary policy rates by the global central banks may lead to flight of capital and pose competition to Indian
bond markets.

. Segment wise performance

Company’s whole business is being considered as one segment, viz. proving merchant banking services within India. The Company
has only one segment of activity in accordance with the definition of “Segment” covered under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 108
on Operating Segments.

The performance of the Company is discussed in this Report.

. Financial and Operational Performance of the Company

On standalone basis, your Company earned total revenue of INR 12,719.95 Lakhs during the financial year under review. The profit
before tax is INR 4,032.16 Lakhs. After making provision for tax, the net profit of your Company is INR 3,179.89 Lakhs.

The consolidated total revenue of your Company stood at INR 51,905.09 Lakhs for the financial year ended March 31, 2024. The
consolidated profit before tax is INR 12,276.75 Lakhs for the current financial year. After making provision for tax, the consolidated net
profit of your Company is INR 9,252.19 Lakhs.

Details of significant changes in key financial ratios along with explanation

In compliance with the requirement of the Listing Regulations, the key financial ratios of the Company along with explanation for
significant changes (i.e., for change of 25% or more as compared to the immediately previous financial year will be termed as ‘significant

changes’), has been provided hereunder:

Sr. No.

Particulars

Financial Year
2023-24

Financial Year
2022-23

Debtors Turnover Ratio™*

44.09

23.37

Interest Coverage Ratio*

2.02

2.40

Debt Equity Ratio

1.39

1.08

Operating profit margin %

31.95%

33.95%

Net profit margin %

25.00%

26.63%

Return on net worth#

6.52%

6.59%

Not Applicable
Not Applicable

Inventory Turnover Ratio
Current Ratio

QO N[ |01 ]A W N =

*Interest Coverage Ratio: On a standalone basis, the Interest Coverage Ratio as on March 31, 2024 stood at 2.02 as against 2.40 as on
March 31, 2023. The decrease is on account of increase in borrowings of the Company.

**Debtors Turnover Ratio: On a standalone basis, the Debtors Turnover Ratio as on March 31, 2024 stood at 44.09 as against 23.37 as
on March 31, 2023. The increase is on account of prompt customer payments and efficient collection and credit policies of the Company.

#Return on net worth: On a standalone basis, the Return on net worth as on March 31, 2024 stood at 6.52% as against 6.59% as on
March 31, 2023. The increase is on account of increase in profits.

.Human Resource

Our employees continue to be our core asset. We understand that our workforce has a life beyond our doors. Our development activities
are focused on creating opportunities that help them achieve the right work-life balance and grow in their respective roles and even
beyond them. We remain committed for making AK Group a workplace, wherein the determination and dedication of our employees
helps to serve our large clientele & generate long-term value for our shareholders.

Ason March 31,2024, the Company had 96 employees on its payroll.
i. Diversity &Inclusion

At AK Group; diversity is our strength. We hire from different cultural and social backgrounds and have a non-discriminatory
approach to acquiring talent. Openness and inclusion makes AK Group a place where you would like to work. Our focus is on
developing skills, encouraging talent and helping people do the best they can, each day. We work with our employees as partners
and provide opportunities for high quality learning, get coaching from industry’s best and offer a challenging yet rewarding
workplace.
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We intend to develop and sustain a diverse workforce which strives to meet the unique needs of our diverse client base and the
sectors in which we operate.

Our Management Trainee program is designed to provide opportunities to fresher’s from Management as well as Professional
Institutes. The program focusses on nourishing young talent which are mentored by industry veterans within the Company and
make them industry ready.

Teamwork & Leadership

We believe a lot in teamwork, as all our employees work in different teams and also across multiple offices. These teams have their
own areas of expertise but they all have shared responsibility and to achieve this, our employees have to work flexibly and
collaboratively.

In AK Group, we expect everyone at the firm to be a leader and should not limit their responsibilities & capabilities. The Company
identifies and recruits people who share their commitment towards business in addition to their intellect and experience.

Employee Programs

We invest in every step of our employees’ careers and ensure their long term interests remain closely aligned with those of our
clients and shareholders. Our goals are to reinforce the firm’s culture, maximize individual potential and expand our employees’
professional opportunities and abilities. We hold varied employee engagement activities, offer development workshops and create
an environment of openness where learning is always a possibility and asking questions is the norm rather than the exception.

Annual cricketing event which involved participation of employees from various functions which fostered team spirit. This employee
engagement activity proved to be an ice breaker between new incumbents & fostered inter-functional and inter-department
communication.

Birthday celebrations, Festive celebrations & Team outings are another method in which an environment is created for employees to
connect, celebrate & discuss ideas.

12. Riskand Concern

As a diversified enterprise, your Company continues to focus on a system-based approach to business risk management. The
management of risk is embedded in the corporate strategies that best match organizational capability with market opportunities,
focusing on building distributed leadership and succession planning processes, nurturing specialism and enhancing organizational
capabilities. Accordingly, management of risk has always been an integral part of the Company’s Strategy.

13. Internal Control Systems and their Adequacy

The Company has adequate internal control systems to commensurate with the nature of business and size of operations for ensuring:

a.orderly and efficient conduct of business, including adherence to Company’s policies and procedures;
b.safeguarding of all our assets against loss from unauthorized use or disposal;

c.prevention and detection of frauds and errors;

d.accuracy and completeness of accounting records;

e.timely preparation of reliable financial information; and

f.compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

Policies, guidelines and procedures are in place to ensure that all transactions are authorised, recorded and reported correctly as well
as provides for adequate checks and balances.

Adherence to these processes is ensured through frequent internal audits. The internal control system is supplemented by an extensive
program of internal audit and reviews by the senior management. To ensure independence, the internal audit function has a reporting
line to the Audit Committee of the Board.

The Audit Committee of the Board reviews the performance of the audit and the adequacy of internal control systems and compliance
with regulatory guidelines. The Audit Committee of Board provides necessary oversight and directions to the internal audit function and
periodically reviews the findings and ensures corrective measures are taken. This system enables us to achieve efficiency and
effectiveness of operations, reliability and completeness of financial and management information and compliance with applicable laws
and regulations.

14.Safe Harbour

The statements made in this report describe the Company’s objectives and projections that may be forward looking statement within the
meaning of applicable laws and regulations. The actual result might differ materially from those expressed or implied depending in the
economic conditions, government policies and other incidental factors which may be beyond the control of the Company.

The Company has obtained all market data and other information from sources believed to be reliable or its internal estimates, although
its accuracy or completeness cannot be guaranteed. We are under no obligation to publicly amend, modify or revise any forward-looking
statements on the basis of any subsequent developments, information or events and assume no liability for any action taken by anyone
on the basis of any information contained herein.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board of Directors presents the Company’s Report on Corporate Governance for the financial year ended March 31, 2024, in terms of
Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 as amended from time to time.

BRIEF STATEMENT ON COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE:

The Corporate Governance represents values, culture and behavior of the organization. Further, the term Corporate Governance is wide to
encompass processes, accountability and level of transparency deployed by the organization in its functioning. In all the term Corporate
Governance covers the conduct of the organization in different situations over a period.

Since, every company/body-corporate is an artificial person created by law, it cannot act on its own. Ultimately, it is the Board of Directors,
KMPs’ and Senior Management who generally governs the behavior of organization/company, and they are responsible for setting the right
culture and values at all levels. Accordingly, presence of human element plays pivotal role in success of corporate governance standards at
all levels for any organization. In view of the same, the Company believes that it is the collective responsibility of Board Members, KMPs’
and the members of Senior Management to foster a culture in which high standards of ethical behavior, individual accountability and
transparent disclosures are ingrained in all its dealings.

A. K. Capital Services Limited (“Company”) completed the journey of more than 30 Years of its existence and over the years, efforts have
been put to enhance the level of compliance standards, processes and practices to ensure transparency in all its dealings. As a Company,
we believe inimplementing Corporate Governance practices that goes beyond meeting the letter of law and we are committed in achieving
the same.

The Report on Corporate Governance, as per the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”) and
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter referred to
as the “Listing Regulations”) and other applicable laws for the time being in force, is as under:

(1) BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

An effective Board of Directors is a pre-requisite for strong and effective Corporate Governance. With the belief that an active, well
informed, truly diverse and independent Board of Directors is necessary to ensure the highest standards of Corporate Governance, the
Company has a fundamentally strong Board comprising of an optimal combination of executive, non-executive and independent
directors so as to preserve and maintain the independence of the Board.

The Board of Directors consists of eminent individuals with considerable professional expertise and experience in Finance,
Infrastructure, Fund Raising, Information Technology, Commercial, Strategy and Planning, Business Administration and other related
fields, who not only bring a wide range of experience and expertise, but also impart the desired level of independence to the Board of
Directors.

The profile of executive and non-executive non-independent directors can be accessed on the Company’s website at
https://www.akgroup.co.in/

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on Company’s business policy and strategy apart from other normal
business, the maximum interval between any two meetings did not exceed one hundred twenty (120) days. The Company adheres to
the Secretarial Standards on the Board and Committee Meetings as prescribed by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India
(“1csr).

(i) Appointment of Directors since last Annual General Meeting

The Directors of the Company are appointed by the Board on the recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and subject to the approval of the Members at the General Meetings.

Since last Annual General Meeting, the following appointment was made by the Board:

Date of first
Name of the Director DIN Current Designation Appointment on the
Board

Sr.
No

Non-Executive, Independent

Mr. Vinod Kumar Kathuria 06662559 .
Director

December 18, 2023
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Name of the Director, DIN
Category and No. of Shares
held

Number of
directorships

Presence in Committees

No. of Board
Meetings
which
director was

No. of Board
Meetings
attended

Attendance at
last AGM held
on September

entitled to
attend

As a 16, 2023

chairperson

As a
member

Mr. A. K. Mittal

(DIN: 00698377)

Promoter & Managing Director
No. of Shares held: 10,62,187

Mr. Subhash Chandra
Bhargava*

(DIN: 00020021)
Chairman & Independent
Director

No. of Shares held: Nil

Mr. Khimji Shamji Pandav#
(DIN: 01070944)
Independent Director

No. of Shares held: Nil

Ms. Aditi Mittal

(DIN: 00698397)
Non-Executive, Non-
Independent, Woman Director
No. of Shares held: 1,86,958

Mr. Ashish Agarwal
(DIN: 08064196)
Whole-time Director
No. of Shares held: Nil

Mr. Vikas Jain

(DIN: 07887754)
Whole-time Director
No. of Shares held: Nil

Mr. Rajiv Bakshi

(DIN: 00264007)
Chairman & Independent
Director

No. of Shares held: Nil

Mr. Ashish Vyas

(DIN: 10264901)
Independent Director
No. of Shares held: Nil

Mr. Vinod Kumar Kathuria$
(DIN: 06662559)
No. of Shares held: Nil

Notes:

1. Directorships/Memberships in committees of public companies are considered including the directorship/ committee membership held
inthe Company.

. The committees considered for above purpose are those prescribed in the Listing Regulations viz. Audit Committee and Stakeholders’
Relationship Committee.

. Ms. Aditi Mittal is daughter of Mr. A. K. Mittal.

4. During the Financial Year 2023-24, four Meetings of the Board were held on May 27, 2023, August 5, 2023, November 5, 2023 and
February 9, 2024.

. Allthe directors of the Company have confirmed that they are not disqualified from being appointed as directors in terms of Section 164
of the Act and other applicable laws for the time being in force.

*Mr. Subhash Chandra Bhargava retired from the position of Chairman and ceased to be Independent Director of the Company due to
completion of his second term of office as an Independent Director w.e.f. March 31, 2024 as per the provisions of Section 149(11) of the

Companies Act, 2013.
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*Mr. Khimji Shamji Pandav resigned from the Board of the Company w.e.f. December 18, 2023 due to his professional and personal
commitments.

*Mr. Vinod Kumar Kathuria was appointed as Additional Independent Director w.e.f December 18, 2023 and was regularized as Non-
Executive Independent Director w.e.f February 16, 2023 through Postal Ballot.
(ii) Composition of the Board of Directors:

The composition of the Board is in consonance with Listing Regulations and in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Act, as
amended from time to time.

Total No. of Directors

Total No. of Executive Directors

Total No. of Non-Executive Directors

Out of Total No. of Non-Executive Directors, No. of Independent Directors 3

Woman Director 1

*Note: Mr. Subhash Chandra Bhargava retired from the position of Chairman and ceased to be Independent Director of the Company due to
completion of his second term of office as an Independent Director w.e.f. March 31, 2024 as per the provisions of Section 149(11) of the
Companies Act, 2013. The Chairman of the Board is Non-Executive Independent Director.

All the independent directors of the Company have provided the declarations to the Board confirming adherence to the criteria of
independence as laid down under Section 149(6) & (7) of the Act, read with Rule 5 and 6 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification
of Directors) Rules, 2014 as amended and the Regulation 16(1)(b) and Regulation 25(8) of the Listing Regulations. Further, in the opinion of
the Board, the independent directors fulfill the conditions specified in Listing Regulations and are independent of the management.

The members of the Company had passed special resolutions, at the 25th and 29th Annual General Meeting, approving the holding of office
and continuing to hold office as independent directors of the Company, who had attained/were likely to attain the age of 75 years as required
under Regulation 17(1A) of the Listing Regulations.

(iii) Names of the other listed entities where the director is a director and the category of directorship as on March 31,2024

Names of the other listed companies

where person holds directorship Category of directorship

Sr. No. | Name of the Director, DIN & Category

Mr. A. K. Mittal
(DIN: 00698377)
Promoter & Managing Director

Ms. Aditi Mittal

(DIN: 00698397)

Non-Executive, Non-Independent,
Woman Director

1. A. K. Capital Finance Limited* Managing Director

1. A. K. Capital Finance Limited* Executive Director

Mr. Rajiv Bakshi 1. Brady and Morris Engineering

(DIN: 00264007)
Chairman & Independent Director

Company Limited
2. N R Agarwal Industries Limited
3. A. K. Capital Finance Limited*

Non-Executive Independent Director

Mr. Vinod Kumar Kathuria
(DIN: 06662559)
Independent Director

1. A. K. Capital Finance Limited*
2. Jayaswal Neco Industries Limited
3. Satia Industries Limited

Non-Executive Independent Director

None of the other directors hold position of Directors in other listed entity.
*A. K. Capital Finance Limited is a high value debt listed Company.

(v) Retirementby rotation

The Members may note that pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Act, read with rules made thereunder, two-third of total
number of directors of public company shall be persons whose office is liable to retire by rotation. In view of same, except
independent directors, the office of all other directors is liable to retire by rotation.

In addition to above, Section 152(6)(c) of the Act also provides that out of the total number of directors whose office is liable to
retire, one-third of such directors shall be liable to retire by rotation. Section 152(6)(d) of the Act also provides that, the directors to
retire by rotation at every annual general meeting shall be those who have been longest in office since their last appointment, but
as between persons who became directors on the same day, those who are to retire shall, in default of and subject to any
agreement among themselves, be determined by lot.

In view of the provisions of the law, Mr. Ashish Agarwal, Whole-time Director (DIN: 08064196) shall be liable to retire by rotation
and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment. The brief profile of Mr. Ashish Agarwal is also enclosed along with the notice
convening 31stAnnual General Meeting of the Company.
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(v) Re-appointment of Independent Directors

The Members of the Company at their 30th Annual General Meeting held on September 16, 2023 had appointed Mr. Ashish Vyas
(DIN: 10264901) as the independent director of the Company for a period of 1 year commencing from August 5, 2023 to August 4,
2024. In view of the same, his tenure has expired on August 4, 2024.

The Members are also informed that pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Independent Directors
shall be eligible for re-appointment for second term of three years if special resolution is passed by the members of the Company
to that effect.

Mr. Ashish Vyas has contributed in the decision making process, evaluating plans and policies of the Company resulting into
overall growth and development of the Company. Considering the performance of the Independent Director in his first term and
his vast experience and expertise in different domain resulting into well-balanced board composition. In view of the same and on
the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board, your Directors have re-appointed
Mr. Ashish Vyas as the Independent Director of the Company for a second term of 3 years commencing from August 5, 2024 to
August 4, 2027 vide Circular resolution dated August 1, 2024 and the same proposal is recommended to the Members of the
Company.

The necessary resolution for re-appointment of the Independent Director and his detailed profile has been included in the notice
convening the AGM and the details of the proposal for re-appointment are mentioned in the explanatory statement of the notice.

The Directors recommend re-appointment of Mr. Ashish Vyas as Independent Director.

All Directors of the Company have confirmed that they are not disqualified from being appointed as directors in terms of Section
164 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(vi) Details of familiarization program imparted to independent directors

The Company has designed a Familiarization Programs for its Independent Directors which is imparted at the time of appointment
of an Independent Director on Board as well as periodically. The Program aims to provide insights into the Company to enable the
Independent Directors to understand its business in depth, to acclimatize them with the processes, business and functionaries of
the Company and to assist them in performing their role as Independent Directors of the Company. The familiarization program
also covers the training on the enactment of new laws, amendments/ modification in the existing regulation having impact on the
Company and/or the role of Independent Directors of the Company. Apart from review of matters as required by the Charter, the
Board also discusses various business strategies periodically. This deepens the Independent Directors’ understanding of
Company’s business and thrust areas.

Further details of familiarisation programs imparted to independent directors are also disclosed on the website of the Company.
The link of the same is re-produced herein below:

https://www.akgroup.co.in/docs/Familiarization%20Programme%20for%20Independent%20Director-2023-24.pdf

(vii) The table below summarizes qualifications, core skills/expertise/competencies with respect to each Directors of the
Board required in the context of its business(es) and sector(s):

In terms of the requirement of the Listing Regulations, the Board has identified the skills/expertise/competencies fundamental for
the effective functioning of the Company, which are currently available with the Board and the names of directors who possess
such skills/expertise/competence.

In the table below, specific areas of focus or expertise of individual Board members have been highlighted; however, the absence
of amark against a member’s name does not necessarily mean that the member does not possess the corresponding qualification
or skills:

Vinod
Kumar
Kathuria

v

Broad Skill-set A. K. S.C. K. S. Ashish | Vikas Aditi Rajiv | Ashish
Parameters Mittal | Bhargava* |Pandav#| Agarwal | Jain Mittal | Bakshi Vyas

Knowledge of Financial Market & Products

<

v | v
v

A
<
<
<
<

Knowledge of applicable laws governing

Industry business
Knowledge &

Experiences

Risk Identification & Management

Knowledge of domestic & international
Practice

Marketing & Sales

AN

Technical . .
Skill-set Business Operations, Accounts and Tax

A A RN IR

AN

Information Technology

Vision and value creation

Strategic

Expertise Planning and Strategy

Strategy Implementation & Change

Behavioral Communications & Negotiations

competencies/
personal
attributes

Leadership

Stakeholders' Relationship

Performance Oriented

Others

AN NE NI NN N A N AN AN AN A NI N
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Achieving Change

*Mr. Subhash Chandra Bhargava retired from the position of Chairman and ceased to be Independent Director of the Company due to completion of his second term of office as an
Independent Director w.e.f. March 31, 2024 as per the provisions of Section 149(11) of the Companies Act, 2013.
#Mr. Khimji Shamji Pandav has resigned from the Board of the Company w.e.f. December 18, 2023 due to his professional and personal commitments.
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(vii) Detailed reasons for the resignation of an Independent Director who resigns before the expiry of his tenure along with a
confirmation by such director that there are no other material reasons other than those provided:

During the FY 2023-24, Mr. Khimji Shamji Pandav has resigned from the Board of the Company w.e.f. December 18, 2023 due to his
professional and personal commitments. Mr. Khimji Shamji Pandav has confirmed that there are no material reasons for his resignation
other than those mentioned in his resignation letter.
(2) BOARD COMMITTEES
The Board has constituted various Committees with their specific terms of reference and scope to take informed decisions in the best
interests of the Company in accordance with the - Act, Listing Regulations and other applicable Laws.
(i) AUDITCOMMITTEE
The Company has a qualified and independent Audit Committee which has been formed in pursuance of the Section 177 of the Act
and Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations.
Purpose and Objective of Audit Committee
The Audit Committee assists the Board in its responsibility for overseeing the quality and integrity of the accounting, auditing and
reporting practices of the Company and its compliance with the legal and regulatory requirements.
Brief description of terms of reference of the Audit Committee:
The Audit Committee performs its role as provided under Listing Regulations, Act, SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015 and such other role as may be assigned by the Board from time to time.

The Audit Committee of the Board plays an important role in monitoring/ supervising the financial reporting process, ensuring
highest levels of transparency, integrity and quality of reporting process. The Audit Committee is also responsible for selection,
evaluation and deciding remuneration payable to Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditors of the Company. The Audit Committee,
inter-alia scrutinizes the Investments, Borrowings and Related Party Transactions of the Company.

The Audit Committee is guided by its terms of reference. The Charter explaining exhaustive terms of reference is available on the
website of the Company. The link of the same is re-produced herein below:

https://www.akgroup.co.in/docs/DETAILS%200F%20BOARD%20COMMITTEES DEC.pdf
Composition of Audit Committee and Meetings held/ attended by members during Financial Year 2023-24:

No. of Audit Committee
Sr. No Name of the Members Category Meetings which director
was entitled to attend

No. of Meetings
attended

Mr. Khimji Shamiji Pandav' Non-Executive
Chairman Independent Director

Mr. A. K. Mittal
Member

3

Managing Director

Mr. Subhash Chandra Bhargava® Non-Executive
Member Independent Director

Mr. Vinod Kumar Kathuria® Non-Executive
Chairman Independent Director

Mr. Ashish Vyas® Non-Executive

Member Independent Director 1 1

5

'Mr. Khimji Shamji Pandav has resigned from the Board of the Company w.e.f. December 18, 2023 due to his professional and personal commitments and ceased to be
Chairman of Audit Committee w.e.f. December 18, 2023.

Mr. Subhash Chandra Bhargava retired from the position of Chairman and ceased to be Independent Director of the Company due to completion of his second term of
office as an Independent Director w.e.f. March 31, 2024 as per the provisions of Section 149(11) of the Companies Act, 2013 and ceased to be Member of Audit Committee
w.e.f. November 5, 2023.

°Mr. Vinod Kumar Kathuria was inducted as the Chairman of the Audit Committee w.e.f. December 18, 2023.
‘Mr. Ashish Vyas was inducted as the Member of the Audit Committee w.e.f. November 5, 2023.
Attendees:

The Chief Financial Officer and representatives of Statutory Auditors were invited to attend the Audit Committee Meetings as and
when necessary, to brief the matters relating to the financial statements of the Company, Audit Findings, and other allied matters.
The Audit Committee had reviewed the information stipulated in Part C of Schedule Il of the Listing Regulations, (to the extent
applicable and available,) during its above meetings. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Audit Committee.

The Internal Auditor reports directly to the Audit Committee.

Mr. Khimji Shamji Pandav, Chairman of the Audit Committee was present at the last Annual General Meeting held on
September 16, 2023.

(ii)) NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The Company has a qualified Nomination and Remuneration Committee which has been formed in pursuance of the Section 178 of
Act and Regulation 19 of the Listing Regulations.
Purpose and Objective of Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The purpose of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is to assist the Board in ensuring that the Board and Committee retain
an appropriate structure, size and balance of skills to support the strategic objectives and values of the Company. The Committee
assists the Board in meeting its responsibilities regarding the determination, implementation and oversight of senior management
remuneration arrangements to enable the recruitment, motivation and retention of senior management.

The Committee oversees arrangements for senior management appointments (including election processes), remuneration,
performance management and succession planning.
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Brief description of terms of reference of Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC)

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee performs its role as provided under the Listing Regulations, the provisions of the Act and
such other role as may be assigned by the Board from time to time.

The Committee reviews the matter pertaining to appointment of Directors, Senior Management and KMP’s and evaluates their
performance. The Committee also sets the benchmark for performance and recommends the remuneration payable to Directors,
Senior Management and KMP'’s. It also assesses the various performance linked incentives/ bonus for key employees of the Company.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is guided by its terms of reference. The Charter explaining exhaustive terms of
reference is available on the website of the Company. The link of the same is re-produced herein below:

https://www.akgroup.co.in/docs/DETAILS%200F%20BOARD%20COMMITTEES DEC.pdf

Composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Meetings held/ attended by members during Financial Year
2023-24:

No. of NRC Committee
Name of the Members Category which director was entitled
to attend

No. of Meetings
attended

Mr. Khimji Shamiji Pandav' Non-Executive Independent

Chairman Director 8

Ms. Aditi Mittal Non-Executive Non-Independent
Member Woman Director

Mr. Subhash Chandra Bhargava® Non-Executive Independent
Member Director

Mr. Vinod Kumar Kathuria® Non-Executive Independent
Chairman Director

Mr. Ashish Vyas® Non-Executive Independent
Member Director

'Mr. Khimji Shamji Pandav has resigned from the Board of the Company w.e.f. December 18, 2023 due to his professional and personal commitments and ceased to be
Chairman of Nomination and Remuneration Committee w.e.f. December 18, 2023.

2Mr. Subhash Chandra Bhargava retired from the position of Chairman and ceased to be Independent Director of the Company due to completion of his second term of office
as an Independent Director w.e.f. March 31, 2024 as per the provisions of Section 149(11) of the Companies Act, 2013 and ceased to be Member of Nomination and
Remuneration Committee w.e.f. November 5, 2023.

°Mr. Ashish Viyas was inducted as the Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee w.e.f. November 5, 2023.
“Mr. Vinod Kumar Kathuria was inducted as the Member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee w.e.f. December 18, 2023.

Criteria for Performance Evaluation of Independent Directors
The key evaluation criteria for performance evaluation of Independent Directors of the Company are given below:
Providing effective leadership and strategic guidance to the management;
Understanding the Business, including the Risks and regulatory landscape;
Attendance at and active engagement in the discussion of business performance, competitive landscape and strategies;
Development and monitoring of leadership teams, Compliance focus and insistence on ethical business practices;
Nudging for long term focus areas such as Succession Planning, Business Continuity Planning etc.;
Management of conflicts in Board discussion;
Management of Conflict of Interest;
Maintains high level of confidentially;
Exercises independentjudgement in the best interest of Company;
Assistance inimplementing best governance practices and monitors the same;
Understanding governance, regulatory & oversight role of the Board;
Aware of significant risk in the industry and theirimplications;
m) Fulfills the independence criteria as specified in the Act and Listing Regulations and theirindependence from the management.

Criteria of making payments to non-executive directors

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee decides the basis for determining the compensation, both Fixed and variable, payable to the
Non-Executive Directors, including Independent Directors, whether as commission or otherwise.

The Committee takes into consideration various factors such as director’s participation in Board and Committee meetings during the year,
other responsibilities undertaken, such as membership or Chairmanship of committees, time spent in carrying out their duties, role and
functions as envisaged in Schedule IV of the Act, Listing Regulations and such other factors as may deem fit for determining the
compensation. The Board determines the compensation to Non-Executive Directors within the overall limits specified in the Shareholders
resolution, if applicable.

Remuneration of Directors

All pecuniary relationship or transactions of the non-executive directors vis-a-vis the listed entity:

Non-Executive Directors are entitled for the sitting fees for attending the meetings of the Board. The sitting fees paid to non-executive
directors is listed herein below:
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Name of the Directors

Sitting fees for the Board/Committee Meetings paid for the Financial
Year 2023-24 (Amount in INR)

Mr. Subhash Chandra Bhargava 1,00,000

Mr. Khimji Shamiji Pandav 75,000
Ms. Aditi Mittal 75,000
Mr. Rajiv Bakshi 75,000
Mr. Ashish Vyas 2,00,000

6 Mr. Vinod Kumar Kathuria 50,000

Executive Directors

Remuneration to Executive Director(s) is recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee which is subsequently
approved by Board of Directors and Shareholders.

The details of remuneration paid to the Executive Director(s) during the Financial Year 2023-24 are as under:
(Amount in INR)

Particulars Mr. A. K. Mittal Mr. Ashish Agarwal Mr. Vikas Jain

Salary, bonus and allowances 1,75,00,000 1,92,59,992

Perquisites (other benefits)

Total (A) 1,75,00,000 1,92,59,992

Value of Stock Option NA NA

Value of Sweat Equity NA NA

Others (Retirals) NA NA

Total (B)

Total (A+B) 1,75,00,000 1,92,59,992

Service Contracts, Notice Period, Severance Fees

The terms of appointment of Executive Directors are governed by the letter of appointment signed with the executive directors and HR
Policy of the Company. All the executive directors are required to serve the Notice Period as mandated in the HR Policy of the Company.
The terms related to severance fees are also captured in the HR Policy of the Company.

Particulars of Senior Management

As on March 31, 2024, 5 employees were designated as Senior Management (as defined in Listing Regulations) of the Company
(Excluding Board of the Directors, Company Secretary and Chief Financial Officer).

There was no change in Senior Management since the close of the previous financial year.

(iii) STAKEHOLDERS’RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The Company has an independent Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee which has been formed in pursuance of the sub-section
5 of Section 178 of the Act and Regulation 20 of the Listing Regulations.

Purpose and Objective of Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee

The purpose of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee (“SRC”) is to assist the Board in understanding and addressing the
needs of various stakeholders in a time bound manner. The SRC considers various aspects of interest of the shareholders and
other stakeholders’.

Brief Description of Terms of Reference

The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee shall perform its role as provided under the Listing Regulations, the provisions of the
Act and such other role as may be assigned by the Board from time to time.

The Role of Committee includes the following:

Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the listed entity including complaints related to transfer/transmission of shares,
non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends, issue of new/duplicate certificates, general meetings etc.

Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders.

Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the listed entity in respect of various services being rendered by the
Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.

Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the listed entity for reducing the quantum of unclaimed dividends and
ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory notices by the shareholders of the company.
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Resolving the shareholders grievances to the satisfaction of the shareholder.
any other activities as may be specified from time to time in the Act and Listing Regulations.

The Stakeholder’ Relationship Committee is guided by its terms of reference. The Charter explaining terms of reference is also
available on the website of the Company. The link of the same is re-produced herein below:

https://www.akgroup.co.in/docs/DETAILS%200F%20BOARD%20COMMITTEES DEC.pdf

Composition of Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee and Meetings held/ attended by members of the Committee during
Financial Year 2023-24:

No. of Stakeholders’
Relationship Committee [No. of Meetings
Meetings which director attended

was entitled to attend

Sr. No Name of the Members Category

Ms. Aditi Mittal Non-Executive Non-
Chairperson Independent Woman Director

Mr. Vikas Jain'
Member

4

Whole-time Director

Mr. Khimji Shamiji Pandav’ Non-Executive Independent
Member Director

Mr. Ashish Vyas® Non-Executive Independent
Member Director

Mr. Ashish Agarwal’
Member

5 Whole-time Director 1

'Mr. Vikas Jain ceased to be Member of Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee w.e.f. November 5, 2023.

2Mr. Khimji Shamji Pandav has resigned from the Board of the Company w.e.f. December 18, 2023 due to his professional and
personal commitments and ceased to be Member of Stakeholders’Relationship Committee w.e.f. November 5, 2023.

°Mr. Ashish Vyas was inducted as the Member of Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee w.e.f. November 5, 2023.
“Mr. Ashish Agarwal was inducted as the Member of Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee w.e.f. November 5, 2023.

Ms. Aditi Mittal, Non-Executive Director heads the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee and Mr. Tejas Dawda, Company Secretary
acts as a Compliance Officer for the Committee.

During the year under review, the Company did not receive any complaint from the shareholders.
(iv) CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

The Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”) Committee is constituted in accordance with Section 135 of the Act, and applicable
rules thereto.

Terms of Reference
The terms of reference of the CSR Committee are as follows:

a) Formulating and recommending to the Board, CSR policy which shall indicate the activities to be undertaken by the Company as
specified in Schedule VlIto the Act;

Making recommendation on the amount of expenditure to be incurred on CSR activities;

Instituting a transparent monitoring mechanism for implementation of the CSR activities to be undertaken by the Company.

To prepare and approve annual action plan for the CSR Activities of the Company.

To ensure reporting mechanism relating to CSR activities of the Company.

Other activities/ functions as provided under the applicable provisions of the Act and rules made thereunder.

The terms of reference and powers of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee also include all items listed under Section
135 and Schedule VIl of the Act, and rules made thereunder.

Composition of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee and Meeting held/ attended by members of the Committee
during Financial Year 2023-24:

No. of Corporate Social
Sr. No Name of the Members Category Responsibility Committee Meeting
a Director is entitled to attend

No. of Meetings
attended

Mr. A. K. Mittal
Chairman

Mr. Vikas Jain'
Member

Managing Director

Whole-time Director

Mr. Subhash Chandra Bhargava® |Non-Executive
Member Independent Director

Mr. Ashish Vyas® Non-Executive
Member Independent Director

Mr. Ashish Agarwal’
Member

Whole-time Director NA
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'Mr. Vikas Jain ceased to be Member of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee w.e.f. November 5, 2023.

2Mr. Subhash Chandra Bhargava ceased to be Member of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee w.e.f. November 5, 2023.
°Mr. Ashish Vyas was inducted as the Member of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee w.e.f. November 5, 2023.

“Mr. Ashish Agarwal was inducted as the Member of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee w.e.f. November 5, 2023.

The Company formulated CSR Policy, which is uploaded on the website of the Company, www.akgroup.co.in. The CSR Committee
met once during Financial Year 2023-24 on May 27, 2023.

The contribution made by the Company on CSR during the financial year are annexed as Annexure - 2 to the Board’s Report.

OTHER COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

In addition to the above referred Committees, which are constituted pursuant to the Corporate Governance Code, the Board has
constituted the following major Committees of the Board and delegated thereto powers and responsibilities with respect to specific
purposes:

(i) BANKING & INVESTMENT COMMITTEE
The Banking and Investment Committee of the Board comprises of the following members:

Sr. No. Name of the Members Designation

Mr. A. K. Mittal Managing Director

Mr. Ashish Agarwal Whole-time Director

Mr. Vikas Jain' Whole-time Director

Ms. Aditi Mittal® Non-Executive Non-Independent Woman Director

"Mr. Vikas Jain ceased to be Member of Banking & Investment Committee w.e.f. November 5, 2023.
2Ms. Aditi Mittal was inducted as Member of Banking & Investment Committee w.e.f. November 5, 2023.

Terms of Reference of the Committee:

a) To consider the matters relating to opening/operating/closing of bank accounts and/or demat accounts including matters relating
to authorizing officers to operate bank/demat account(s) and any change thereto;

b) Toavail E-net, Credit Card and other facilities offered by Banks and/ Financial Institutions;
To open Demat & CSGL account for holding / keeping Government Securities;
To empanel with other market intermediaries, participants and regulators for making investment/ disinvestments;

To consider making of Investments, mainly in debt securities, shares and mutual funds, liquid funds and any other securities
including Investments in subsidiaries and group companies;

Approve the matters related to giving/ making loans, guarantee and securities;
To avail credit/ loan or other services from the Bank within the limits approved by the Bank;
To authorize officer(s) to exercise rights as an investor from time to time;

To consider, negotiate, transact and approve the matter relating to raising of funds/ capital by issue of Non-Convertible
Debentures, Commercial Paper(s), Preference Shares and other permissible securities/ instruments up to the limit authorized
by the Shareholders (to the extent applicable) on such terms and conditions as it may deem fit from time to time.

To consider such other matters as may be required to make an investments or operation of bank/ demat accounts from time to
time.

(i) MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
The Management Committee of the Board consists of the following Directors as its members:

Sr. No. Name of the Members Designation

Mr. A. K. Mittal Managing Director

Ms. Aditi Mittal Non-Executive Non-Independent Woman Director

Mr. Ashish Agarwal Whole-time Director

Mr. Vikas Jain' Whole-time Director

"Mr. Vikas Jain ceased to be Member of the Management Committee w.e.f. November 5, 2023.
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Terms of Reference of the Committee:

a) To authorize the officers of the Company to appear before any government / semi government authorities, judicial, quasi-judicial
bodies, regulatory/ taxation authorities, stock exchanges;

b)  Toauthorize officers to make, sign and finalize any documents, applications, affidavits, forms etc. to be executed with third parties
including but not limited to taxation authorities, vendors, suppliers, clients, regulators, judiciary bodies, shareholder, employees
and other stakeholders;

c) To apply for membership of any of the government / semi government authorities, judicial, quasi-judicial bodies, regulatory/
taxation authorities, stock exchanges in connection with the business of the Company

d) Toavail services/ purchase goods, execute the contracts/ agreements in ordinary course of business of the Company;
e) Toauthorize the officers of the Company for operational/ business purposes;

f) To consider the matter relating to participation in particular assignment, mandate, bids or offer(s) and evaluating the proposal
placed before it;

g) Toconsider matters connected with smooth conduct of administration and operations of the Company.
To do specific acts or classes of acts, defining the range of their terms of office;
Hiring/Letting, Residential/Commercial accommodation/s on lease for official use;
Acquisition/disposal of fixed assets and commercial property for official purposes;
To enter into an agreement for maintenance of the premises with third parties/ vendors;

To authorize employees to complete the requisite formalities in connection with buying/ selling and letting out the properties of the
Company including registration and stamp duty payment thereof.

To do all such acts, deeds and things as may be necessary for ensuring adequate availability of infrastructure for the benefit of the
Company and making best use of the available facilities.
(3) GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

All the resolutions moved at the last Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company were passed by e-voting and Instapoll with
requisite majority of members voted and attending the AGM. No Extraordinary General Meeting was held during the financial year.

The date, time and venue of the last three AGM’s of the Company are as follows:

Whether any Special

Financial Year Date Time Venue .
resolutions passed

*603, 6th Floor, Windsor, Off CST
September 16, 2023 Road, Kalina, Santacruz - (East), Yes
Mumbai — 400 098

*603, 6th Floor, Windsor, Off CST
September 17, 2022 Road, Kalina, Santacruz - (East),
Mumbai — 400 098

*30-38, 3rd Floor, Free Press House,
2020-21 September 18, 2021 9.00 a.m. Free Press Journal Marg, 215, Nariman Yes
Point, Mumbai - 400 021

*Pursuant to General Circular Nos.14/2020, 17/2020, 20/2020 and 10/2022 dated 8th April, 2020, 13th April, 2020, 5th May, 2020 and
December 28, 2022 respectively, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA Circulars”) and Circular No.
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated 12th May, 2020 issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI Circular”)
and in compliance with the provisions of the Act and the Listing Regulations, the last Three AGM’s (28th, 29th and 30th) of the Company
were conducted through VC/OAVM Facility, which does not require physical presence of Shareholders at a common venue. The
deemed venue for the last Three AGM’s (28th, 29th and 30th) was the Registered Office of the Company.

(4) POSTALBALLOT

During the year under review, a Postal Ballot was conducted by the Company for seeking the approval of the Members. The details of
the Postal Ballot conducted are mentioned below:

Date of Postal Ballot Notice: January 16, 2024

Voting period: January 17,2024 (from 9:00 a.m.) to February 15, 2024 (1ill 5:00 p.m.)
Date of Declaration of results: February 16, 2024

Voting Pattern:

Votes in favour Votes against

Item Description Type of
No.

Resolution No. of votes Polled No. of No. of
% %
votes votes
Approval of appointment of Special 51,05,572 51,05,566 | 99.9999 6

Mr. Vinod Kumar Kathuria as resolution
Non-Executive Independent

Director of the Company

For the above mentioned Postal Ballot M/s. Ragini Chokshi & Co., Practicing Company Secretaries, were appointed as the Scrutinizer
for conducting the Postal Ballot process in a fair and transparent manner.
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Procedure for postal ballot

The postal ballot was conducted as per the provisions of Sections 108 and 110 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
read with the Rules thereunder and the Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs in this regard.

Whether any special resolution is proposed to be conducted through postal ballot:
Currently, the Company does not have any plans with respect to passing of resolutions through Postal Ballot.

However, considering the business requirement(s) the Company may prefer to pass appropriate resolution through circulation(s)/ postal
ballot. The procedure for Postal Ballot shall be communicated together with notice of passing resolution through Postal Ballot, if required.

(5) MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:

| The quarterly/ half yearly and annual financial results of the Company are regularly submitted to the stock exchange where the shares
of the Company are listed in accordance with the Listing Regulations and are generally published in an English newspapers
(Business Standard) and in Marathi newspaper (Pratahkal).

The Company has its own website (www.akgroup.co.in) and the information relating to the Company and its services is displayed on
its website. The Company’s results and official news releases, if any, are displayed on the website of the Company.

During the year under review, the Company did not have any institutional investors or analysts. Thus, the Company was not required
to make any presentations to the institutional investors or analysts.

(6) GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION:
i Details of the 31st Annual General Meeting of the Company

The 31st Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held on 21st day, September, 2024 at 9.00 a.m., through Video
Conferencing/ Other Audio Visual Means (VC/ OAVM), which does not require physical presence of members at a common
venue.

Guidelines for participation in the AGM through VC/ OAVM are laid down in the Notice convening the said meeting and have also
been uploaded onthe Company’s website at www.akgroup.co.in.

Financial year of the Company
The financial year of the Company covers the period from April 1 to March 31.

Dividend payment date

The payment of dividend, if any, shall be paid on or before, October 20, 2024.

Listing of Equity Shares on Stock Exchanges:

The Company’s Equity Shares are listed on BSE Limited (BSE), Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai—400 001.
The Company has paid the requisite annual listing fees for the Financial Year 2024-25 to BSE.

Stock Code and ISIN:

BSE Scrip Code: 530499

International Securities Identification Number (ISIN): INE701G01012

Market Price data- high, low during each month in last financial year:

The table below gives the monthly high and low quotations of equity shares traded at BSE Limited (BSE) for the Financial Year
2023-24.

Month High Price (INR) Low Price (INR) No. of shares traded

April 2023 487.95 19,627

May 2023 544.95 21,132

June 2023 530.00 51,685

July 2023 568.50 21,716

August 2023 611.00 63,926

September 2023 868.70 2,70,765

October 2023 799.40 67,633

November 2023 894.80 60,725

December 2023 817.00 37,061

January 2024 860.00 46,325

February 2024 1,160.00 1,54,787

March 2024 1,077.00 69,824

42 | Corporate Governance Report




Annual Report 2023-2024

vii Performancein comparison to broad based indices: BSE Sensex
The table below shows the performance of the equity share vis a vis BSE Index, SENSEX:
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Confirmation/Undertaking:

The Directors of the Company be and hereby confirm that in no event the Securities of the Company were suspended from
trading during the Financial Year 2023-24.

Registrar to an Issue and Share Transfer Agent:

Link Intime India Private Limited

C-101, 247 Park, L.B.S. Marg, Vikhroli (West) Mumbai - 400 083
E-mail: rnt.helpdesk @linkintime.co.in

Website: www.linkintime.co.in

Share transfer system:

The Company'’s shares are compulsorily traded in electronic form in demat mode on BSE. 99.80% of the equity shares capital of
the Company are held in demat mode. Transfer of equity shares in electronic form are effected through the depositories without
any involvement of the Company.

As mandated by SEBI, securities of the Company can be transferred / traded only in dematerialised form. Shareholders holding
shares in physical form are advised to avail the facility of dematerialization.

Distribution of Shareholding:
Distribution schedule of Equity shareholding of the Company as at March 31, 2024 is as follows:

Category Number of % of total Total number of % of total

Shareholders Shareholders shares held Shareholding

2,373 89.72 1,76,441 2.67
127 4.80 98,508 1.49
59 2.23 84,060 1.27

24 0.90 62,245 0.94

13 0.49 46,584 0.71

9 0.34 41,066 0.63
12 0.45 86,221 1.31

28 1.05 60,04,875 90.98
2,645 100.00 66,00,000 100.00

Note:
(i) The rounding off of percentages could result into arithmetical differences.
(ii) Number of Shareholders are calculated on the basis of Folio Numbers.
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Equity Shareholding pattern of the Company as at March 31,2024 is as follows:

Category Number of shares % of total Shareholding

Promoter and promoter group (A)
Indian 47,18,730 71.50
Sub-total (A) 47,18,730 71.50

Public (B)
NRls 82,335 1.25
Indian Bodies Corporate/LLP 6,40,240 9.70
Individuals/HUF 11,45,611 17.35
IEPF 13,084 0.20
Sub-total (B) 18,81,270 28.50

Total Shareholding (A) + (B) 66,00,000 100.00

Note:
(i) The rounding off of percentages could result into arithmetical differences.

% of total Shareholding as on March 31, 2024

¥ Indian
= NRIs
‘ ® Indian Bodies Corporate/
- LLP
Individuals/HUF

u |[EPF

Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity:

As on March 31, 2024, 99.80% of the paid-up Equity Share Capital of the Company was held in dematerialized form with National
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL). The Company’s equity shares
are traded at the BSE Limited. The market lot is one share as the trading in equity shares of the Company is permitted in
dematerialized form.

The Members of the Company are informed that only Equity Share Capital forms the part of the paid-up Capital Structure of the
Company. Further as on March 31, 2024, the Company has outstanding Commercial Paper amounting to INR 100 Crores.

The Company has not issued any other instrument(s) such as Preference Shares/ American Depository Receipts/ Global
Depository Receipts whether convertible or not.

The Members of the Company may note that Company is not involved in the Commodities Market. Further the operations of the
Company are not exposed to Foreign Exchange Risk and Hedging Activities.

Since the Company is engaged in the business of providing Services as a Merchant Banker and Investment Adviser, the
Company does not have any manufacturing units/ plants.

Address for Correspondence:

For any assistance, request or instruction regarding transmission/transposition of shares, dematerialization of shares, change
of address, non-receipt of annual report, interest/dividend warrant and any other query relating to the shares of the Company, the
investors may please write to the following address:

Link Intime India Private Limited The Company Secretary

C-101, 247 Park, L.B.S. Marg, Vikhroli (West) A. K. Capital Services Limited

Mumbai - 400 083 603, 6th Floor, Windsor, Off CST Road, Kalina,
Tel: +91 22 4918 6270 Santacruz (East), Mumbai — 400 098

Fax: +91 22 4918 6060 Tel: 491 22 67546500 | Fax: +91 22 66100594
E-mail: rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in E-mail: csakesl@akgroup.co.in

Website: www.linkintime.co.in Website: www.akgroup.co.in

For queries relating to the financial statements and investors information, other than those relating to shares/ dividend, please write
to:

Chief Financial Officer

A. K. Capital Services Limited

603, 6th Floor, Windsor, Off CST Road, Kalina, Santacruz (East), Mumbai—400 098

Tel: +91 2267546500 | Fax: +91 2266100594 | E-mail: akmumbai @akgroup.co.in | Website: www.akgroup.co.in
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XVii. List of all credit Rating obtained by the Company

Rating Agency Rating Instruments Rating Action Date

CARE Ratings Limited CARE A1+ (A One Plus) Commercial Paper Reaffirmed April 6, 2023

CARE Ratings Limited CARE A1+ (A One Plus) Commercial Paper Reaffirmed May 9, 2023

CARE Ratings Limited CARE A1+ (A One Plus) Commercial Paper Reaffirmed July 5, 2023

CARE Ratings Limited CARE A1+ (A One Plus) Commercial Paper Reaffirmed October 13, 2023

Acuité Ratings & Research  |[ACUITE AA- (ACUITE Double A| Long Term Instruments |Assigned/Reaffirm| October 27, 2023
Limited Minus) ed
(Outlook: Stable)

(6) OTHER DISCLOSURES:

Disclosure on Materially Significant Related Party Transactions that may have potential conflict with the Interest of Listed Entity at
Large:

Allthe Related Party Transactions (RPTs) that were entered during the Financial Year 2023-24 were on arm’s length basis and were
in the ordinary course of business. The Company presents a statement of related party transactions before the Audit Committee on a
quarterly basis specifying inter alia the nature & value of the transactions. Prior omnibus approval of the Audit Committee is obtained
for the transactions which are foreseen and/or repetitive in nature.

However, the disclosure of transactions with related party for the year, as per Indian Accounting Standard-24 - Related Party
Disclosures (IND AS-24), is given in Notes to the Accounts section of the Annual Report.

Further, disclosure required under Schedule V Part A of Listing Regulations pertaining to related party transactions is furnished in
Notes to the Accounts section of the Annual Report.

All Related Party Transactions as required under Indian Accounting Standards-24 are reported in Note No. 38 of Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements and Note No. 31 of Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements of your Company.

No material penalty or strictures has been imposed on the Company by the Stock Exchanges or the Securities and Exchange Board
of India or any other Statutory Authorities, on any matter related to the capital markets, during the last three financial years.

iii. The Audit Committee has established a Vigil Mechanism and adopted a Whistle-Blower Policy, which provides a formal mechanism

for all Directors and employees of the Company to approach the Audit Committee and make protective disclosures to the Committee
about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s Code of Conducts or ethic policy. The Company
affirms that no Director or employee has been denied access to the Audit Committee.

iv. Details of compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of the non-mandatory requirements

The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of the Schedule V of the Listing Regulations. The status of
compliance with the non-mandatory requirements of this clause has been detailed herein:

Adoption of Non-mandatory requirement:

Part C of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations states that non-mandatory requirements may be implemented at the discretion of the
Company. However, disclosures on compliance with mandatory requirement and adoption / non-adoption of non-mandatory
requirements shall be made in the Corporate Governance Report of the Annual Report. The status of compliance of the non-
mandatory requirements as specified in sub-regulation 1 of Regulation 27 of the Listing Regulations are as follows:

a) The Board:
The Company does not defray any expenses of the Chairman’s Office.
b)Shareholder Rights:

The Company’s quarterly, half-yearly and yearly results are furnished to the Stock Exchanges and are also published in the
newspapers and on the website of the Company and therefore results were not separately sent to the Members.

c) Modified opinion(s) in Audit Report:

For the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024, the Independent Auditors have given unmodified opinion on the Company’s
Financial Statements. The Company continues to adopt best practices to ensure the regime of unmodified Financial Statements.

d)Separate posts of Chairperson and the Managing Director or the Chief Executive Officer:

The Company has appointed separate persons to the post of Chairperson and the Managing Director. The Chairperson of the
Board is a Non-executive Independent Director and is not related to the Managing Director as per the definition of the term
“relative” as defined in Act.

e) Reporting of the Internal Auditor:
The Internal Auditor reports directly to the Audit Committee.

v. Policy on determining Material Subsidiary

In accordance with Listing Regulations the Company had two material subsidiaries add namely, A. K. Capital Finance Limited and
A. K. Stockmart Private Limited in the financial year 2023-24. The Policy for determining the material subsidiaries has been
formulated and adopted by the Board. The Policy may be accessed on the Company’s website at link:

https://www.akgroup.co.in/docs/Policy%20for%20Determining%20Material%20Subsidiaries.pdf
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vi. Policy ondealing with Related Party Transactions

In accordance with the provisions of Listing Regulations, the Company has formulated a Policy on Materiality and Dealing with
Related Party Transactions. It can be accessed on the Company’ website at the link:

https://www.akgroup.co.in/docs/Policy%200n%20materiality%20and%20dealing%20with%20Related%20Party%20Transactions.pdf
The Company is not exposed to commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities.

During the Financial Year 2023-24, the Company has not raised any funds through Preferential Allotment or qualified institutional
placement as specified under Regulation 32(7A) of Listing Regulations

Certificate from Practicing Company Secretary:

The Certificate from the Practicing Company Secretary, M/s. Ragini Chokshi & Co., Secretarial Auditor, confirming that none of the
Directors on the Board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed/ continuing as directors of the
Company by SEBI and/or Ministry of Corporate Affairs and/or any such authority forms part of this Annual Report.

The Members of the Company are informed that the Board has accepted all the recommendations of its Committees.

M/s. PYS & Co., Chartered Accountants, [Firm Registration No.: 012388S/S200048] is the Statutory Auditor of the Company. The
remuneration paid to the Statutory Auditors for the Services rendered during Financial Year 2023-24 is disclosed in the Financial
Statements of the Company. The Subsidiaries of the Company have not availed any Services from the statutory auditors of the
Company.

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries have availed the Services of any network firm/ network entity of which statutory auditor is
apart.

Disclosure in relation to Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013:

The Company has constituted the Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) consisting of such members and representatives as
prescribed under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 read with the
rules made thereunder.

During the financial year 2023-24, no case in the nature of sexual harassment was reported at any workplace of the Company.

Disclosure by listed entity and its subsidiaries of ‘Loans and advances in the nature of loans to firms/companies in which
directors are interested:

The information in respect of the loans and advances in the nature of loans to firms/companies in which directors are interested is
provided in Notes to the standalone Financial Statements.

Details of material subsidiaries of the listed entity in the financial year 2023-24; including the date and place of
incorporation and the name and date of appointment of the statutory auditors of such subsidiaries:

Name of material Date of Place of Name of Statutory Date of
subsidiary incorporation incorporation Auditor appointment

A_. K Capital Finance 03/02/2006 Kolkata M/s. S. Bhandari and 24/11/2021
Limited Co. LLP

A. K. Stockmart Private . M/s. JMR &
Limited 17/01/2006 Mumbai Associates LLP 26/09/2019

The Members are informed that the Company has complied with all the conditions as specified in para (2) to (10) of the Schedule V
of the Listing Regulation to the extent applicable to the Company.

xvi. The disclosures in relation to adoption of discretionary requirements as specified in Part E of Schedule Il are provided in Clause 6
(iv) of the Corporate Governance Report.

. Disclosures of compliance with Corporate Governance requirements specified in Regulation 17 to 27 and Regulation 46 of the
Listing Regulations:

The Company has complied with the Corporate Governance requirements specified in Regulation 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-
regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of the SEBI Listing Regulations as applicable to the Company during the year under review.

Compliance Certificate from PYS & Co LLP., Statutory Auditors of the Company confirming compliance with the of conditions of
Corporate Governance for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 in terms of Schedule V(E) to the Listing Regulations is annexed to
this Report.

. Disclosures with respect to Demat Suspense Account/ Unclaimed Suspense Account:

As per Listing Regulations, the Company reports that the Company has not transferred any equity shares in demat suspense
account/unclaimed suspense account at any point of time.

. Disclosure of certain types of agreements binding listed entities:
During the year under review, there was no agreement entered as mentioned in clause 5A of paragraph A of Part A of Schedule Ill of the
Listing Regulations.
. CEO/CFO Certification:
The Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer of the Company have certified to the Board, inter alia the accuracy of financial
statements and adequacy of internal controls for the financial year ended March 31, 2024, as required under Regulation 17(8) read with
Part B of Schedule Il of Listing Regulations. The said certificate is annexed to and forms part of this Report.
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DECLARATION ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management, which is posted on the website of the Company. The
Code lays down, in detail, the standards of business conduct, ethics, and governance. The Board Members and Senior Management
Personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct in respect of the Financial Year 2023-24.

For A. K. Capital Services Limited

A. K. Mittal
Managing Director
(DIN: 00698377)

Place: Mumbai
Date:August 10, 2024

CERTIFICATE FROM THE MANAGING DIRECTOR AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

To,
The Board of Directors
A. K. Capital Services Limited

A.  We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the Financial Year 2023-24 and we certify that:

1. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that might be
misleading;

2. these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting
standards, applicable laws and regulations.

There are, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violate of the Company’s
code of conduct.

We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we have evaluated the
effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and there have been no deficiencies in
the design or operation of such internal controls of which we are aware.

We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee that there were:
1. nosignificant change in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

2. nosignificant change in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements; and

3. there have been no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein of the
management or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial reporting.

For A. K. Capital Services Limited

A. K. Mittal Mahesh Bhootra

Managing Director Chief Financial Officer
(DIN: 00698377)

Place: Mumbai
Date: August 10, 2024
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CERTIFICATE ON NON- DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

ANNEXURE - 6

To,

The Members of

A. K. Capital Services Limited

603, 6th Floor, Windsor, Off CST Road, Kalina
Santacruz (East), Mumbai - 400098

We, Ragini Chokshi & Co, Company Secretaries, have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received
from the Directors of A. K. Capital Services Limited having (CIN: L74899MH1993PLC274881) and having its Registered Office at
603, 6th Floor, Windsor, Off CST Road, Kalina, Santacruz (East) , Mumbai - 400 098 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’),
produced before us, by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule
V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as amended from time to
time).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Director Identification Number (DIN) status at
the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by the Company & its Officers, we hereby certify
that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or
continuing to act as Directors of the Company for the Financial Year ending March 31, 2024, by the Securities and Exchange Board of
India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority:

Sr.
No.

1 Mr. Subhash Chandra Bhargava | Non-Executive Chairman & 04-09-2007# 00020021
Independent Director
Mr. Rajiv Kumar Bakshi Non-Executive Independent Director 05-08-2023 00264007
Mr. Ashish Vyas Non-Executive Independent Director 05-08-2023 10264901
Mr. Vinod Kathuria Non-Executive Independent Director 18-12-2023 06662559
Mr. Atul Kumar Mittal Managing Director 05-10-1993 00698377
Ms. Aditi Mittal Non-Executive Woman Director 03-02-2018 00698397
Mr. Vikas Santosh Jain Whole time Director 03-02-2018 07887754
Mr. Ashish Agarwal Whole time Director 03-02-2018 08064196

Name of Director Designation Date of Appointment* DIN

*Date of original appointment
#Ceased to be Chairman & Independent Director w.e.f March 31, 2024 on account of completion of 2*term.

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the

future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
Company.

For Ragini Chokshi & Co

Umashankar K. Hegde
Partner
M.No- ACS 2213 # C.P. No-11161
ICSI Unique Code: P1988MH05 6900
Peer Review Certificate No -659/2020
UDIN: A022133F000410323
Place: Mumbai

Date: May 21, 2024
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Independent Auditors’ Certificate on compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance as per provisions of
Chapter IV of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015

To,

The Members

A. K. Capital Services Limited

603, 6th Floor, Windsor Off CST Road, Kalina

Santacruz (East) Mumbai - 400098

1. The Corporate Governance Report prepared by A. K. Capital Services Limited (“the Company”), contains the details as required by
provisions of the regulations 17 to 27, 46 (2) (b) to (i) and paras C and D of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended (“the Listing Regulations”) with respect to Corporate Governance for the year ended 31
March 2024. This Certificate is required by the Company for inclusion in the Annual Report of the Company, which shall be submitted to the
Stock Exchange and shareholders of the Company.

Management responsibility

2. The preparation of the Corporate Governance Report is the responsibility of the Management of the Company including the preparation and
maintenance of all relevant supporting records and documents. This responsibility also includes the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Corporate Governance Report.

3. The Management along with the Board of Directors are also responsible for ensuring that the Company complies with the conditions of
Corporate Governance as stipulated in the Listing Regulations, issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India.

Auditor’s Responsibility

4. Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Regulations, it is our responsibility to provide a reasonable assurance in the form of an opinion
whether the Company has complied with the specific requirements of the Listing Regulations referred to in paragraph 1 above.

. We have conducted our examination of the Corporate Governance Report in accordance with the Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates
for Special Purposes and the Guidance Note on Certification of Corporate Governance, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI”). The Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes requires that we comply with the ethical
requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1, Quality Control for Firms that
Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements.

The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks associated in compliance of the
Corporate Governance Report with the applicable criteria. Summary of key procedures performed include:
i) Reading and understanding of the information prepared by the Company and included inits Corporate Governance Report;
i) Obtained and verified that the composition of the Board of Directors w.r.t. executive and non-executive directors have been met
throughout the reporting period;
iii) Obtained the details of the Directors and verified that at least one-woman director was on the Board during the year;
iv) Obtained and read minutes of the following meetings held from 01 April 2023 to 31 March 2024;
Board of Directors meeting
Audit committee meeting
Annual General meeting
Nomination and Remuneration committee
Stakeholders’ Relationship committee
Corporate Social Responsibility committee
v) Obtained necessary representations and declarations from Directors of the Company including the independent directors; and
vi) Performed necessary inquiries with the management and also obtained necessary specific representations from the management.
The above-mentioned procedures include examining evidence supporting the particulars in the Corporate Governance Report on a test
basis. Further, our scope of work under this report did not involve us performing audit tests for the purposes of expressing an opinion on
the fairness or accuracy of any of the financial information or the financial statements of the Company taken as a whole.
Opinion
8. Based on the procedures performed by us as referred in paragraph 7 above and according to the information and explanations given to us,
we are of the opinion that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the Listing Regulations,
as applicable for the year ended 31 March 2024, referred to in paragraph 1 above.
Other matters and Restriction on Use
9. This Certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the
management has conducted the affairs of the Company.
10. This Certificate is addressed to and provided to the members of the Company solely for the purpose of enabling it to comply with its
obligations under the Listing Regulations and should not be used by any other person or for any other purpose. Accordingly, we do not
accept or assume any liability or any duty of care or for any other purpose or to any other party to whom itis shown or into whose hands it may

come without our prior consent in writing. We have no responsibility to update this Certificate for events and circumstances occurring after
the date of this Certificate.

For PYS & COLLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Reg. No.: 012388S/S200048

Sanjay Kokate

Partner

Membership No.: 130007

UDIN: 24130007BKAVBN5560 Place: Mumbai

Certificate No.: 24033 Date: August 10, 2024
Corporate Governance Report | 49




®
A. K. Capital Services Limited

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To
The Members of
A. K. Capital Services Limited
Report on the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of A. K. Capital Services Limited, (hereinafter referred to as “the
Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2024, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive
income), the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone
financial statements including a summary of the material accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to
as “the standalone financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standard prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standard) Rules 2015 as amended (Ind AS) and the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31 March 2024, the profit and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on
that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’'s Code of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the standalone
financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the standalone financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, description
of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit
matters to be communicated in our report.

Sr. No. Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

1 Measurement of investments in accordance with Ind AS 109 | Principal Audit Procedures

“Financial Instruments” e Obtained an understanding of Company’s business
On initial recognition, investments are recognized at fair value, in model assessed in accordance with Ind AS 109;

case of Investments which are recognised at fair value through Evaluated the Company’s assessment of business
profit and loss (FVTPL), its transaction cost is recognised in the model:

statement of profit and loss. In other cases, the transaction costs
are attributed to the acquisition value of the investments.

The Company’s investments are subsequently classified into
following categories based on the objective of its business model
to manage the cash flows and options available in the standard: Evaluated the design of internal controls relating to the

* Debt !nstrumentsatamortllse.d cost . measurement and also tested the operating
- Debtinstruments and equity instruments at fair value through effectiveness of the aforesaid controls:

profitorloss (FVTPL)

Obtained an understanding of the determination of the
measurement of the investments and tested the
reasonableness of the significant judgments applied
by the management;

o . Ensured that the Company has used valuation
Equity instruments measured at fair value through other techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances

comprehensive income FVTOCI. and for which sufficient data are available to measure
The Company has assessed the following two business model: fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
- Heldto collect contractual cash flows inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs,
- Realising cash flows through the sale of investments. The including consideration of the current economic and

Company makes decisions based on the assets’ fair values market conditions.

and manages the assets to realise those fair values. Obtained and assessed the valuation certificate of

Since valuation of investments at fair value involves critical independent valuer in respect of fair value of

assumptions, significant risk in valuation and complexity in investments; and

assessment of business model, the valuation of investments Assessed the appropriateness of the disclosure in the

asperIndAS 109 is determined to be a key auditmatterinour|  standalone financial statements in accordance with the

audit of the standalone financial statements. applicable financial reporting framework.

(Refer note 2, 6, 34, 35 and 37 to the Standalone Financial |«  Broadly reviewed the IT systems and internal controls

Statements) related to investment in place.
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Key Audit Matter

How Our audit addressed the key audit matter

Related party transactions and disclosures

The Company has undertaken transactions with its related
parties in the normal course of business.

We have identified the accuracy and completeness of related
party transactions and its disclosure as set out in respective
notes to the standalone financial statements as a key audit
matter to verify whether the transactions are recorded at arm
length basis, disclosure of such transactions in the standalone
financial statements and regulatory compliance thereon during
the year ended 31 March 2024.

(Refer note 31 to the Standalone Financial Statements)

Principal Audit Procedures

« Obtained, read and assessed the Company’s policies,
processes and procedures in respect of identifying related
parties, evaluation of arm’s length, obtaining necessary
approvals, recording and disclosure of related party
transactions, including compliance of transactions and
disclosures in accordance with the regulations.

Tested on a sample basis, related party transactions with
the underlying contracts and other supporting documents
for appropriate authorization and approval for such
transactions.

Read minutes of meeting of the Board and its relevant

committee meetings and minutes of meetings of those
charged with governance in connection with transactions
with related parties affected during the year and
Company’s assessment of related party transactions being
in the ordinary course of business at arm’s length and in
accordance with the regulations.

Assessed and tested the disclosures made in accordance
with the requirements of Ind AS and the applicable
regulations.

Information Other than the standalone financial statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Company’s annual report namely Directors’ Report, Annexures to Board Report, Management Discussion and
Analysis, Corporate Governance Report, Business Responsibility Statement, but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. The Reports are expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditors’report.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified above when
it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Board report including Annexures to Board Report, Management Discussion and Analysis, Corporate Governance
Report, Business Responsibility Statement, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate
the matter to those charged with governance as required under SA 720 (Revised) ‘The Auditor’s responsibilities Relating to Other
Information’.

Management’s Responsibilities for the standalone financial statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the
preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including
other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for the safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the
audit. We also

a)

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(If the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

c) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures

d)

made by management and Board of Directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management’s and Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it
probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced.
We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of
our work; and (i) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current year and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
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1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of India in terms of
sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4
of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary
for the purposes of our audit;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as, it appears from our
examination of those books;

¢) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and
the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended;

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2024 and taken on record by the Board of
Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2024, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2)
ofthe Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of Section 197(16) of
the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid or provided
toits directors during the year is in accordance with the provision of Section 197 of the Act;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us:

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its standalone financial statements (Refer
Note No. 33 to the standalone financial statements);
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The Company did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including derivative contracts during the year
ended 31 March 2024;

ii. There hasbeen nodelay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the
Company during the year ended 31 March 2024;

a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as mentioned in note 49 (a) to the standalone
financial statements, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any
other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as mentioned in note 49 (b) to the standalone
financial statements, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the
Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security
orthe like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances , nothing has
come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as
provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement

respect of dividend:

The final dividend proposed in the previous year, declared and paid by the Company during the year is in accordance with
Section 123 of the Act, as applicable.

The interim dividend declared and paid by the Company during the year and until the date of this report is in compliance with
Section 123 of the Act.

The Board of Directors of the Company have proposed final dividend for the year which is subject to the approval of the
members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The amount of dividend proposed is in accordance with section 123 of the
Act, as applicable.

i. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of
account for the financial year ended 31 March 2024 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit, we did
not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with.

Further, the Company is using independent softwares for sale and purchase of investments and payroll processing which are not
integrated with the accounting system of the Company. Based on the output of these softwares, the Company account for the
entries related to investment and payroll on a timely basis. Accordingly, in our view, the reporting responsibility under Rule 11(g) is
not applicable.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from 01 April 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record
retention is not applicable for the financial year ended 31 March 2024.

ForPYS&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 0123885/S200048

Sanjay Kokate

Partner

Membership No.: 130007
UDIN: 24130007BKAUZI8240

Place: Mumbai
Date: 24 May 2024
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ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
of our report of even date of A. K. Capital Services Limited)

(i) Inrespect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets, according to the information and explanations given
to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company:

a) (A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of property, plant
and equipment and relevant details of right-of-use assets.

(B) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

The Company has a regular programme for physical verification of its property, plant and equipment by which all the assets are
verified every year. In our opinion, the periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and
the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the programme, all the property, plant and equipment have been physically verified by the
management during the year and no discrepancies were observed in such verification.

c) Thetitle deeds ofimmovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including right-of-use assets) and intangible assets during
the year.

e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as of 31 March 2024 for holding any benami
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

(ii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, in respect
of the Company’s inventories:

a) Considering the nature of the business, the Company does not have inventory. In view of this, Clause 3 (ii) (a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

b) The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks on the basis of
security of current assets. According to information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us, the quarterly
returns or statements including revised, if any filed by the Company during the year with such banks are in agreement with books of
account.

(iii) Inrespectofthe Company’s investments, loan, guarantee or security:

a) During the year, the Company has not provided loans or provided advances in the nature of loans, or stood guarantee, or provided
security to any other entity.

During the year, the Company has invested in debt instruments, mutual fund and alternate investment fund, which are not prejudicial
tothe Company’sinterest.

In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans, which is granted to an employee of the Company, the schedule of repayment
of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and repayments or receipts are regular. The said loan is fully repaid during
the year.

There was no amount overdue with respect to the aforesaid loan given to an employee of the Company and accordingly, reporting
under Clause 3(iii)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the year, no loan or advance has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdue of existing loans
given to the same parties and accordingly, reporting under Clause 3(iii)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the year, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without
specifying any terms or period of repayment and accordingly, reporting under Clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(iv) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company
has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans granted, investments made,
guarantees, and securities provided, as applicable.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits during the year from the public to which the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India
and provision of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed thereunder apply. Accordingly, Clause
3 (v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not prescribed maintenance
of cost records under Sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act.

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is generally regular in depositing the undisputed statutory
dues including provident fund, goods and service tax, income tax, cess and any other statutory dues applicable to it with the
appropriate authorities. There are no arrears of outstanding statutory dues as at the last day of the financial year for the period of
more than six months from the date they became payable. As explained to us, the Company did not have any dues on account of
duty of excise, sales tax and value added tax.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income tax, goods and service tax and other statutory
dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute with the appropriate authorities except the following dues of income
Tax:
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Name of the statute | Nature of the dues Amount Period which the amount Forums where the
(Rs. in Lakhs) relates Dispute is pending

Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 124.59* Assessment Year 2018-19 Commissioner of Income
Tax (Appeals), Mumbai

*Disputed demand of Rs. 159.54 Lakhs has been adjusted against the refund order issued for the assessment year 2022-23 of
Rs. 2.95 Lakhs. Further, an amount of Rs. 32.00 Lakhs has been paid under protest against the said demand during the previous year.

(viii)There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

(ix) In respect of borrowings:

(a) During the year, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings in the payment of interest thereon to any
lender and hence, reporting under Clause 3(ix) (a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company is not declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender and hence, reporting under Clause
3(ix) (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c) The Company has applied the term loans for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.
(d) During the year, the funds raised on short term basis by the Company have not been utilized for long-term purposes.

(e) During the year, the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures and hence, reporting under Clause 3(ix) (e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(f) During the year, the Company has not raised any loan on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate
companies and hence, reporting under Clause 3(ix) (f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x) Inrespectofissue of shares or debtinstruments:

(a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year
and hence, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures
(fully or partly or optionally) and hence, reporting under Clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi) Inrespect of frauds and whistle blower complaints:
(a) Nofraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

(c) No whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the year (and upto the date of this report), while determining the
nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence, reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, transactions
with related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable and details of such transactions have
been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) In respect of internal audit system:
(a) Inouropinionthe Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and the nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the Company during the year and till date, in
determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

(xv) Inour opinion during the year, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its Directors or persons connected with
its directors and hence, the provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) Inrespect of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934:

(a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence,
reporting under Clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, the
Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities during the year. Hence, reporting under
Clause 3(xvi) (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. Hence,
reporting under Clause 3(xvi) (c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) In our opinion, the Group does not have more than one Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the Core Investment
Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016. Hence, reporting under Clause 3(xvi) (d) of the Order is not applicable to the

Company. . )
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(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the immediately preceding financial
year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however,
state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to
the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

In respect of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR):

(a) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in
Schedule VIl to the Companies Act in complia